Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Ann Sweeney tel 020 8547 4629
e-mail: ann.sweeney@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 3 June 2019

Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee
Date:

Tuesday 11 June 2019

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Dysart School, 190 Ewell Road, Surbiton

Members of the Committee
Alexandra Ward

Councillor Mark Beynon
Councillor Sam Foulder-Hughes
Councillor Sharron Falchikov-Sumner

Berrylands Ward

Councillor Sushila Abraham
Councillor Anita Schaper
Councillor John Sweeney

St Mark’s Ward

Councillor Liz Green
Councillor Diane White
Councillor Yogan Yoganathan

Surbiton Hill Ward

Councillor Hilary Gander
Councillor Alison Holt
Councillor Malcolm Self

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting

This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by
scanning the QR code with your smartphone.

2

3

Agenda
1.

Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair for the municipal year
2019/20
To appoint a Neighbourhood Committee Chair and Vice Chair for the municipal
year 2019/20.

2.

Apologies for Absence
Councillor Yogan Yoganathan.

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Petitions

5.

Questions

6.

Minutes
To confirm the minutes the minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2019.

7.

Neighbourhood Manager's Report

8.

Browns Road Area

Appendix A

9.

Planning Application - 30 The Avenue Surbiton KT5 8JG
18/00213/FUL

Appendix B

10.

Mayfield, Old Malden Lane, Worcester Park, Worcester Park,
KT4 7PU - Planning Consultation

Appendix C

The application for
Change of Use from Residential (C3) to a Mixed Land Use of Residential (C3) and
Primary School (D1) for up to 72 children and 15 staff at Mayfield, Old Malden Lane
with parking facilities /mini bus drop off and collection from the Richard Challoner
School will be determined at the Development Control Committee in accordance
with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.
The application has been brought to the Neighbourhood Committee for comment.
11.

Early Engagement on the Local Plan

Appendix D

12.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if
any exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish
to resolve to exclude the press and public:

4
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as
defined in paragraph *….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed
and the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)
13.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair
Next Meetings

18 July 19

05 December 19

10 September 19

21 January 20

25 September 19

25 February 20

07 November 19

12 March 20
28 April 20

5

Welcome to this meeting.
The following information explains the way some things are done at the meeting and some
of the procedures.
Information about the Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee
Accessibility





All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are
stairs, a lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop
(depending on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).
A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements - If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building
by the nearest exit. If you require assistance please remain seated and an Officer will assist
you from the building.
Recording of the meeting - This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be
available on the web site (www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.
Filming - Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so
but are asked to give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people
on being filmed.
Information for members of the public - Details on access to the meeting, asking
questions, speaking on items, call in and other information are just after the list of items.
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm.
Running order - Items may be taken in a different order depending on the interests of the
members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form, available at the
start of the meeting, if you would like to request that a particular item is heard earlier.
Contact for further information - For further about Council Committees and meetings
please contact: Ann Sweeney tel 020 8547 4629, e-mail:
ann.sweeney@kingston.gov.uk

6
More meeting information
Public participation during the meeting - During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at
his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on items listed on the agenda. To attract the
Chair’s attention please raise your hand.
Do you want to ask a question or are you here for a particular item? - There are
green slips available that can be used to ask a question or to ask for an item to be taken
earlier in the meeting. Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee
Secretary at the top table.
Question time - Questions may be submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at
the start of the meeting on the green forms provided. For enquiries please contact Ann
Sweeney tel 020 8547 4629, e-mail: ann.sweeney@kingston.gov.uk
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Speaking at meetings - Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every
effort is made to make this as easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take
account of people who may have a speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If
you have any individual requirements or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may
present a difficulty, please let us know beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help
you as far as reasonably possible.
Phrases used at meetings - Like all organisations, the Council has its own ‘jargon’. On
the agenda and during debates you will see/hear the following phrases:
Interests - Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda.
Interests may be personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be
necessary for the Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of
the Constitution - Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call in - Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning
applications/ planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing
applications, can be called in for review by a minimum of 100 people who live, work or
study in the Borough or 9 Councillors. A Decision Notice will be published on the
Council’s website soon after the meeting with details of the decisions and the call in period
expires 10 working days after the meeting. Decisions are not, therefore, acted upon until it
is clear that they are not going to be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny
Panel. The Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide that
no further action is necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer
the issue back to the decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a meeting of the
Full Council) with its views and a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account
of these views
Minutes - The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not
record who said what during the debate.
What Time Will the Meeting Finish?

7
The Committee has agreed that its meetings will normally finish by 10.30pm. You may
hear this time referred to as 'the guillotine'. If, however, it appears that the meeting is
likely to go on later and the members of the Committee wish to continue discussing the
business on the agenda the Committee can agree either to extend the cut off point or
not apply it at all.

Speaking on Planning Applications, Enforcement, or TPOs
There is a registration scheme for residents wishing to speak on Planning Applications,
Tree Preservation Orders or Enforcement cases to be determined by the Committee.
(For other items on the agenda, including planning applications on which the
Neighbourhood is being consulted before the application is considered by the
Development Control Committee, residents may ask questions and give their views at the
discretion of the Chair.)
The arrangements for speaking on applications are based on both sides having equal time
to make their points to Councillors. To make sure that the meeting runs in a way which is
fair to everyone, these arrangements will be followed without any exceptions being made.
The full scheme is on the Council website at the ‘Council and Decision making’ webpages.
Everyone wishing to speak on an Application, Enforcement Action or Tree Preservation
Order must have registered THREE days before the meeting. Objectors must have
responded to the consultation on an application. To register please contact:
Ann Sweeney tel 020 8547 4629, e-mail: ann.sweeney@kingston.gov.uk
Registration deadline Friday 7 June, 10:00am
Time for speaking - FIVE minutes is allowed for each side on each application. This
time has to be shared by however many there are on each side. If there is a large number
of speakers, people must decide amongst themselves on a spokesperson or some other
arrangement. The Chair of the meeting has no discretion to extend the time limit.
Speakers may find it helpful to have made some notes on what they want to say, so that
they make the most of the speaking time. The notes attached to the original consultation
letter from the Planning Officer will have explained the things that the Committee can't
take account of - loss of view, property values etc.
The order of speaking is:
Planning applications

Enforcement/Tree Preservation Orders

1.
2.

Objector(s)

Planning Officer to present item
(5 minutes)
Land/property owner

3.

Applicant

(5 minutes)

4.

Objector(s)

5.

Applicant

6.

(5 minutes)

The Council as applicant and/or supporters of
the action proposed
(5 minutes)
Questions from Committee to Objector(s) and Applicant
(5 minutes)
Land/property owner
(5 minutes)
(5 minutes)

The Council as applicant and/or supporters of
the action proposed
(5 minutes)
Sweep up by Planning Officer

8
7.

Questions from Committee to Officers

8.

Debate and decision by Committee

A1

Appendix A

Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee
11 June 2019
Browns Road Area - Parking Proposals

Assistant Director, Transportation & Highways

Purpose
This report outlines the outcome of a Traffic Management Order (TMO) consultation on
the introduction of a Permit Parking Area (PPA) in the Browns Road area (i.e. Browns
Road, Warwick Grove, South Place, Mayberry Place and King Charles Crescent) and the
provisional outcome in the Alpha Road area (i.e. Alpha Road, Britannia Road and Middle
Green Close).
Recommendations
To resolve that -

1. the objections received in response to the publication of the TMO for the Browns
Road area, & Alpha Road area and officer’s responses, as set out in paragraphs 9
and 11 are noted;.
2. the objections received are set aside, and the implementation of the TMO for the
introduction of a PPA which would operate Mon-Fri 11am -2pm in the Browns
Road area including (Browns Road,Warwick Road,South Lane, Mayberry Place
and King Charles Crescent, Alpha Road, Britannia Road and Middle Green Close)
is approved and the objectors are informed of this decision.

Benefits to the Community:
Residents will find it easier to park their vehicles in their own roads.

Key Points
1.

On 20 March 2019, the Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee considered a report
outlining the objections received to the draft TMO for the Browns Road area
regarding the introduction of new PPA in their roads (operational Monday-Friday
11am-2pm). Moreover, the Committee reviewed the results of local consultation
in the Alpha Road area on the extension of the PPA to their roads. The results of
this consultation demonstrated support from residents.

2.

Subsequently, the Committee decided to defer making a decision on the Browns
Road TMO until the TMO for the Alpha Road area was published, in order to
consider all responses collectively.

3.

The TMO for the Alpha Road area was published on 16 May 2019 and will close
on 6 June 2019. To date, only one objection has been received. Based on the
outcomes (to date) for Alpha Road area, and the outcomes for Browns Road
area, members are asked to decide on the way forward.

A2

Context
4.

On 6 November 2018, the Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee agreed to
introduce a new Permit Parking Area (PPA) operational Monday-Friday
11am-2pm in the Browns Road area, i.e. Browns Road, Warwick Grove, South
Place, Mayberry Place, and King Charles Crescent. The Alpha Road area (i.e.
Alpha Road, Britannia Road, and Middle Green Close) was not taken forward
due to low response rate to the consultation.

5.

On 16 January 2019, a petition was submitted to the Surbiton Neighbourhood
Committee asking the Council to consider adding back in the Alpha Road area as
part of the approved PPA. The Committee resolved that residents from the Alpha
Road area be consulted again.

6.

On 20 March 2019, the Committee considered a report outlining the objections
received to the draft Traffic Management Order (TMO) for the Browns Road area
and the results of the local consultation in the Alpha Road area. Subsequently,
the Committee decided to defer making a decision on the Browns Road TMO
until the TMO for the Alpha Road area was published, in order to consider all
responses collectively.

7.

The TMO consultation for the Alpha Road area was published on 16 May 2019 in
local newspapers and on the Council’s website. The deadline for the consultation
is 6 June 2019.

Proposal and Options
8.

Introduction of new PPA operational Monday-Friday 11am-2pm in the Browns
Road and Alpha Road areas.

Objections received to the Browns Road area, Alpha Road area TMO
9.

Objections received are as follows:
1] ‘I work in Sainsbury's on the Ewell Road and travel by car as I do shift
work between 6am - 11pm. I do not live in the PPA area but need to park in
South Lane. a PPA would seriously affect my ability to work’.
The fact that a person works in Ewell Road does not entitle them to park for
free in South Lane which is part of the proposed PPA however the scheme is
only operational from 11am-2pm Mon-Fri which still allows free parking either
side of those hours. For that reason, we recommend that this objection is set
aside.

10.

During the publication of Browns Road area draft Traffic Management Order
(TMO), 10 objections received from Alpha Road residents, hence the scheme is
extended to include them, the objections are no longer valid.

11.

As at the date of publication of this report two objections were received from
Middle Green Close, outlining such a scheme will impact them negatively, & 6
emails received 5 supporting the scheme, and one is concerned about the impact
of such a scheme will have on none highways on-street parking “housing car
park in Alpha Road and Middle Green Close”.

A3

Consultations
12.

Please see below, the result of the local consultation on the extension of PPA to
Alpha Road area carried out in Jan/Feb 2019;
Q1: Do you want a PPA scheme?
Street

No: 7

sent

rec’d

yes

no

Alpha Road

59

18

17

1

Britannia Road

86

16

12

4

9

2

0

2

154

36

29

7

Middle Green Place
Totals
13.

Yes:29

Based on the result and comments received, particularly, such a scheme will
lead to displacing the problem to the surrounding roads. The scheme will be
monitored and reviewed after 12 months. This would enable a review of the
PPA’s effect on the surrounding roads to take place, and any essential
improvements to the scheme would be designed as appropriate. Hence, it is
recommended that the objections received to the publication of the TMO are set
aside, and the proposed PPA as shown on Annex 1 is implemented.

Timescale
14.

Subject to Committee approval for setting aside the objections received, the
scheme could be implemented October 2019

Resource Implications
15.

If a scheme is approved the funding will be met from Section 106 of the Planning
Act “It is expected for the scheme to cost up to £30k“

Legal Implications
16.

If a scheme is approved, it is not expected to have any legal implications.

Risk Assessment
17.

The key issues that would need to be considered are any displaced traffic to
surrounding roads which has been addressed by a second consultation to the
roads concerned.

Equalities Impact Assessment
18.

Schemes of this nature are covered by an overarching EQIA, and as such it does
not require a specific assessment.

A4

Health Implications
19.

The scheme will enhance and improve health aspect for residents, by reducing
the level of traffic using these roads trying to find a place to park, will reduce the
level of fumes, noise, congestion, and stress.

Road Network Implications
20.

It is considered that the implementation of a PPA scheme will result in an
improved local environment, as it is anticipated that there would be significantly
less traffic on the road trying to find and secure on-street parking spaces. This
traffic usually stops/start as drivers wait for spaces, and so the local traffic
network would be expected to function more effectively.

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
21.

The scheme would shift on-street parking pressure to other roads, which do not
have parking controls, and it is likely that the traffic would spread over a wider
area. It would, however, reduce the amount of local traffic that uses the roads in
the controlled area, whilst trying to find a space to park.

Background papers Consultation response Papers - Letters received - past consultations and parking surveys
Document, Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee report, Objections received;
held by author
Author of report  - Younes Hamade, Senior Professional Traffic Engineer
tel 020 8547 5922 email: younes.hamade@kingston.gov.uk

BUS
STOP

R
KING CHA

S1

LES' ROAD
S2

Richmond Grove

S3

THE RETREAT

LYSANDER GARDENS

THE RETREAT

S4

ALPHA ROAD
GLASS PLACE

·
SP3A

MIDDLE GREEN

CLOSE

·

SP2A

PLAN TO ACCOMPANY RECENT
QUESTIONNAIRE

S3

S3

SP3

SOUTH PLACE

S1

S1

BRITANNIA ROAD
S3
S1

WARWICK GROVE

A240 EWELL ROAD

H URC
RIST C

D
H ROA

CH

ALPHA ROAD
S3

ESCENT

AMBULANCES

KING CHARLES CR

S1

S3
S1

ARLES' R

KING CH

S1 S3

BROWN'S ROAD

BROWN'S ROAD

OAD

S1 S3

KING CHARLES CR

MAYBERRY PLACE

BUS
STOP

Sutton

A5

ESCENT
S3

KING CHARLES CRESCENT

S1
S3
S1

BUS
STOP

APPENDIX A
SURBITON NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 11 JUNE 2019
REPORT BY
HEAD OF PLANNING & REGENERATION
PLANNING APPLICATIONS
INDEX

ITEM
NO

A1

REGISTER
NO

18/00213/FUL

DESCRIPTION

RECOMMENDATION

30 The Avenue
Surbiton
KT5 8JG

Demolition of existing 8 garages to rear. PERMIT
Erection of new building comprising of 2
x 2 bed residential units with roof space
accommodation, including associated
car parking and landscaping.

PAGE
NO

A1
B1

Appendix B

Report 441722

ADDRESS

B2
SURBITON NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
11TH JUNE 2019
REPORT BY THE
Assistant Director of Strategic Planning & Infrastructure
PLANNING APPLICATIONS
All recommendations for planning permission in this section are automatically subject
to the condition limiting the duration of the permission required by Sections 91 and 92
of the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended) 1990 unless permission is to be
granted for a limited period or unless there is a specific recommendation that the period
for such duration be other than the period referred to in the standard condition. All
background papers are incorporated into Planning Application Reports.
The policies listed are those from the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames the
Local Development Framework Core Strategy, Adopted April 2012.

A1

B3
Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee
Date of Meeting: 11/06/2019

A1

Register No:

18/00213/FUL

Address:

30 THE AVENUE, SURBITON

(c) Crown Copyright. All right reserved. Royal Borough of Kingston 2007. Licence number
100019285.
[Please note that this plan is intended to assist in locating the development it is not the site
plan of the proposed development which may have different boundaries. Please refer to the
application documents for the proposed site boundaries.]

A2

B4
Ward:
Description of Proposal:

Plan Type:
Expiry Date:

Berrylands
Demolition of existing 8 garages to rear. Erection of
new building comprising of 2 x 2 bed residential units
with roof space accommodation, including associated
car parking and landscaping.
Full Application
31/01/2019

APPLICANT'S PLAN NOS:
293(PL)00 SITE LOCATION PLAN

Received

06/12/2018

293(PL)01 EXISTING SITE PLAN

Received

06/12/2018

293(PL)03 Rev B PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

Received

30/05/2019

293(PL)03 Rev B PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Received

30/05/2019

293(PL)04 PROPOSED PLANS

Received

06/12/2018

293(PL)05 SIDE ELEVATIONS

Received

06/12/2018

293(PL)06 SIDE ELEVATIONS

Received

06/12/2018

293(PL)07 SECTION CC

Received

06/12/2018

293(PL)08 B PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

Received

06/12/2018

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 2019
Planning Practice Guidance (web based resource)

Development Plan
London Plan 2016
LDF Core Strategy April 2012

Policies
LP 3.3
LP 3.4
LP 3.5
LP 6.13
LP 7.4
LP 7.6
CS 01

LONDON PLAN JULY 2012
Increasing housing supply
Optimising housing potential
Quality and design of housing development
Parking
Local character
Architecture
LDF CORE STRATEGY CORE POLICIES
Climate Change Mitigation
A3

B5
CS 08
CS 10
DM01
DM10
DM12
DM13

Character, Heritage and Design
Housing Delivery
LDF CORE STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
Sustainable Design and Construction Stan
Design Requirements for New Developments
Development in Conservation Areas and Affecting Heritage
Assets
Housing Quality and Mix

CONSULTATIONS
1. Neighbour notifications: 42 addresses have been notified of the
proposed development. 7 objections have been received. The
objections are summarised as follows:
-Design and Layout
-Height and bulk
-Loss of privacy
-Loss of sunlight/daylight
-Impact on trees
-Car parking/access issues
-Noise

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS
2. The application site is located on the west side of The Avenue north of
the junction of Christ Church Road. The site is occupied by a 4 storey
semi-detached residential building fronting The Avenue which consists
of 6 flats. The building is enveloped by open grounds to the front and
rear and an access road to the side that leads to 8 lock up garages to
the rear of the private grounds of the residential property.
3. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in character and
appearance and sits within the Christ Church Conservation Area. It has
a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1a (poor) and does not
lie within a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) or a Flood Zone. There are
no individual trees protected by Tree Preservation Orders on the site,
but they are all protected by virtue of it lying within the Conservation
Area. The Grade II listed Christ Church is located south of the site
approximately 20 metres from the site’s boundary.

PROPOSAL
4. Planning permission is sought for the demolition of existing 8 garages to
rear. Erection of new building comprising of 2 x 2 bed residential units
with roof space accommodation, including associated car parking and
landscaping (including revised parking layout and refuse/recycling
position)
A4

B6

ASSESSMENT
The main considerations material to the determination of this application are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Principle of Proposed Development
Quality of Accommodation
Impact on Character of Area
Impact on Neighbour’s Residential Amenity
Highways and Parking
Trees
Legal Agreements
CIL
Sustainability

Principle of Proposed Development
5. The proposed development seeks to intensify the provision of residential
units on the application site that is located on existing residential land in
a residential area. The garaging to be replaced is ancillary to the existing
site but its loss is not precluded by current Development Plan policy. It
is considered that the proposed development would be compatible with
and would not change the existing primary residential use of the site. It
is considered that subject to the detailed consideration of all other
matters the principle of the development would be acceptable.
6. Policy CS10 (Housing Delivery) of the Council's LDF Core Strategy
(2012) states that the Council will take every opportunity to deliver new
housing
7. Paragraph 59 of the NPPF (2019) states [inter alia] that to significantly
boost the supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and
variety of land can come forward where it is needed and that land with
permission is developed without unnecessary delay.
8. The Borough's annual housing target has increased since the adoption
of the LDF Core Strategy and Kingston currently has an annual housing
target of 643 new residential dwellings per year (London Plan 2016).
9. The draft London Plan proposes a new annual housing target for
Kingston of 1,364 new residential dwellings per year. This application
proposes 2 additional residential units, therefore helping to contribute to
these annual housing targets. In addition, the Council are currently
unable to demonstrate a 5 year supply of land for the delivery of housing.
As such, the 'titled balance' and Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF (2019) is
a material planning consideration.
Quality of accommodation
10. The proposed accommodation of the new dwellinghouses would comply
with the existing internal space standards set out in the London Plan
A5

B7
Policy 3.5 table 3.3. The proposed dwellinghouses would have a
practical layout and an acceptable level of amenity space proportionate
to the size of dwellinghouses proposed. The dwellinghouses would be
served by adequate off-street parking provision and adequate space for
refuse and recycling facilities and cycle parking. It is noted that the
separation distance to the rear boundary is less than the 7.5 metre
separation distance to the boundary recommended in Policy Guidance
16 of the Council’s adopted LDF Core Strategy. However the habitable
room windows serve a kitchen/dining area and secondary bedroom and
open onto private amenity space with the main living area to the front.
Overall it is considered that this is acceptable to provide adequate
outlook for future occupants who would also have an acceptable level of
privacy and provision of daylight and sunlight.

Impact on Character of Area
11. Policies CS8 and DM10 of the Council's LDF Core Strategy (2012)
advise that proposals should relate well to their surroundings and be of
a high standard of design to achieve a more attractive, sustainable and
accessible environment.
12. Policy CS8 (Character, Heritage and Design) states that the Council will
protect the primarily suburban character of the Borough, existing
buildings and areas of high quality and historic interest from
inappropriate development. Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New
Developments (Including House Extensions) states that development
proposals will be required to incorporate principles of good design.
13. The site lies within the Christ Church Conservation Area. Section 16,
Section 66 and Section 72 of the Planning Listed Building and
Conservation Areas Act 1990 directs that special attention shall be paid
to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and
appearance of Listed Buildings, their settings, and Conservation Areas.
This direction is carried through into the Council's Core Strategy.
14. The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 sets out National
Planning Policy with regard to dealing with Heritage Assets. The NPPF
directs that in decision taking the council should conserve heritage
assets in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of this and future
generations.
15. Policy DM12 (Development in Conservation Areas and Affecting
Heritage Assets) of the Core Strategy seeks to preserve or enhance
existing heritage assets.
16. The proposed development would be situated on land which contains 8
single storey garages surrounded by hardstanding and an access road.
It is considered that it currently adds little to the Character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.
17. The proposed development would result in the removal of these
garages, to which there is no objection. The proposed replacement
building would be of a contemporary design, with a part pitched, part flat
roof, with brickwork on the ground floor and cladding above.
A6

B8
18. The proposed replacement building would be larger in scale and
footprint to what it replaces. However, it would be sited to the rear of
number 30 (a four storey building), with only some glimpses afforded
from the streetscene and the appearance of the built form would be an
improvement on the existing built form to the rear of the site visible in
part from the street and therefore would have limited to no impact on the
wider Conservation Area.
19. The proposed new dwellings would not follow the existing (and
established) building lines along The Avenue and King Charles Road.
However, it is noted that a similar development of a set of garages was
recently approved to the rear of numbers 22-24 the Avenue (reference
17/16087/FUL), which likewise do not follow these building lines. As
such, the proposed development would not appear alien or out of
character.
20. Similarly, the proposed development would be located around 20m from
the nearby Grade II Listed Christ Church, and as such it is not
considered that it would have any material impacts or cause harm to the
setting of this Listed building.
21. As such, in general, subject to the use of high quality materials, it is
considered that the development would not harm the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area or the setting of the Grade II Listed
Christ Church.
22. The proposed development therefore would accord with Section 16,
Section 66 and Section 72 of the Planning Listed Building and
Conservation Areas Act 1990, paragraphs 189 - 196 of the NPPF and
policies CS8, DM10 and DM12 of the Council's adopted LDF Core
Strategy April 2012.
Impact on Neighbours’ Residential Amenity
23. Paragraph 127 of the NPPF directs planning decisions should ensure
that developments are visually attractive with a high standard of amenity
for all existing and future users of land and buildings.
24. Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New Developments) advises
that development must have regard to the amenities of occupants and
neighbours, including in terms of privacy, outlook, sunlight/daylight,
avoidance of visual intrusion and noise and disturbance.
25. The proposed building would introduce some additional built
development close to the boundaries with numbers 32 and 28 The
Avenue. Given the orientation, the building would result in some minor
overshadowing of the rear garden serving number 28 (which lies due
North). However, it is noted that the first floor element would be sited
1.05m away from the shared boundary, and 21.5m away from the main
rear facing habitable room windows serving number 28. As such, it is
considered that the development is unlikely to unduly harm the
amenities of this property
26. In relation to overlooking, there would be proposed first floor rear facing
windows onto the rear gardens of numbers 103 and 105 Kings Charles
Road but it is noted that these windows would be obscure glazed with
limited opening and can be conditioned to be so and non opening below
A7

B9
1.7m above the internal finished floor level allowing for light and
ventilation. To the front, bedroom windows are proposed, but these
would be separated from the rear elevation of number 30 by more than
23m, which exceeds the 21m set out in the SPD for residential design.
Similarly, no flank windows are proposed.
27. The proposed parking area is a common feature at the front of the
properties in The Avenue and it is considered that this will not create any
significant harmful levels of noise that would diminish the existing living
conditions of the existing occupants of 30 The Avenue or the
neighbouring occupiers of adjacent sites and it is considered that there
would be sufficient separation distances to the windows of the lower and
upper ground floor units for the car parking area so as to not have a
harmful impact on the outlook of the neighbouring occupiers.
28. The proposed refuse/recycling area is proposed to be moved to the rear
of the existing building the details of which are to be secured by condition
and the neighbouring occupiers to be consulted on the conditions
application to consider any amenity impacts.
29. The proposed development by virtue of its size, siting and design in
relation to the neighbouring properties would not cause any significant
material harm to the outlook, daylight/sunlight provision or privacy of the
neighbouring occupiers.
30. The proposal would accord with policy DM10 of the Council's adopted
LDF Core Strategy April 2012.
Highways & Parking
31. Paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
states that development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be
severe.
32. The site has a low PTAL rating of 1a (moderate to good). The London
plan policy 6.13 would indicate for this development, a maximum of 2
vehicular parking spaces should be provided. 1 space per dwelling is
shown in line with this policy.
33. The application would result in the loss of 8 garages. Whilst the
application is accompanied with a parking beat survey that shows on
street parking provision is already at 100% capacity on the surrounding
roads the garages themselves are not used by the residents of 30 The
Avenue the garages are ancillary to and the proposed development
would provide two off-street parking spaces for the future occupants.
The garages that are in use are used for storage and not the stationing
of a motor vehicle and the garages are rented to residents who live
outside the survey area (a radius of 200m)
34. As such it is considered that the proposed development would not
increase demand for on street parking and It is considered that the
proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact on
highway safety, or result in severe residual cumulative impacts on the
road network.
35. The proposal would comply with paragraph 109 of the NPPF, Policy 6.13
A8

B10
of the London Plan and Policy DM10 of the Council's adopted LDF Core
Strategy.
Trees
36. The application is supported by an arboricultural report and a health
check of the trees on site has been undertaken. It is proposed to remove
a tall sycamore tree at the rear of the site which is denoted as a category
C tree of low grade amenity value this acknowledged by officers and its
removal accepted. The development has been assessed by the LPA's
Tree and Landscape Officer and the findings and recommendations of
the arboricultural report submitted by the applicant are found to be
acceptable and it is considered that the proposal would not cause harm
to the remaining trees on site and surrounding the site.
37. It is considered that the proposal would accord with policy DM10 of the
Council's adopted LDF Core Strategy April 2012.
Legal Agreements
38. The application is not subject of any section 106 agreements.
CIL
39. The proposed development would be both MCIL and KCIL liable.
Sustainability
40. Policies 5.1 and 5.2 of the London Plan (2016) seek to mitigate climate
change and achieve an overall reduction in London's carbon dioxide
emissions through a range of measures including less energy, supplying
energy efficiently and using renewable energy.
41. Policy CS1 (Climate Change Mitigation) states that the Council will
ensure that all development (including extensions, refurbishments and
conversions) is designed and built to make the most efficient use of
resources, reduce its lifecycle impact on the environment and contribute
to climate change mitigation and adaptation.
42. As such, subject to an appropriate condition, it is considered that the
proposal would comply with Policy CS1 of the Council's LDF
CoreStrategy (2012).
Conclusion
43. Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF (2019) states that for decision-making the
Council should approve planning permission unless the adverse impacts
of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.
44. The Council are unable to demonstrate a 5 year supply of land for the
delivery of housing. As such, the 'tilted balance' and Paragraph 11(d) of
the NPPF (2019) is a material planning consideration.
A9

B11
45. The proposed development would be of a scale and design that would
meet the quality required for a site in a conservation area and be in
keeping with the surrounding area and would see the delivery of 2 x 2
bedroom high quality residential dwellings with private amenity space
which would outweigh any negative impacts of the development.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve subject to the following conditions:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within 3 years
from the date of this decision.
Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act, 1990. (As amended)

2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
293(PL)00 SITE LOCATION PLAN

06/12/2018

293(PL)01 EXISTING SITE PLAN

06/12/2018

293(PL)03 RevB PROPOSED SITE PLAN

30/05/2019

293(PL)03 Rev B PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

30/05/2019

293(PL)04 PROPOSED PLANS

06/12/2018

293(PL)05 SIDE ELEVATIONS

06/12/2018

293(PL)06 SIDE ELEVATIONS

06/12/2018

293(PL)07 SECTION CC

06/12/2018

293(PL)08 B PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

06/12/2018

Reason: For avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3

The car parking shown upon the approved drawings shall be provided
with a hard bound dust free surface, adequately drained before the
development to which it relates is occupied and thereafter it shall be kept
free from obstruction at all times for use by the occupier of the
development and shall not thereafter be used for any purposes other than
the parking of vehicles for the occupiers of the development and visitors
to it.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate off-street parking
accommodation and to avoid the congestion of surrounding roads by
parked vehicles in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements
for New Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core
Strategy Adopted April 2012.
A10

B12

4

Full details of the materials, colour and texture of the external finish of the
building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before development commences and the development
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved finishes.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance on completion of the
development in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for
New Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core
Strategy Adopted April 2012.

5

Prior to the commencement of any above groundworks (excluding
demolition) of the development hereby permitted and notwithstanding the
details shown on the approved plans stated in condition 2 of this
permission, the following details shall have been submitted (on plans at a
scale of no less than 1:20 and 1:5) and approved by the Local Planning
Authority.
- Window reveals, door reveals, overhangs, rainwater goods.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details
Reason: It is necessary to provide these details as it is integral to the
design and appearance of the building and therefore agreement of these
details prior to commencement would ensure a satisfactory appearance
on completion of the development in accordance with Policy DM10
(Design Requirements for New Developments including House
Extensions) of the LDF Core Strategy Adopted April 2012.

6

All works on site shall take place in accordance with the following details
which shall have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of work:
(a)

Provision for loading/unloading materials.

(b)

Storage of plant, materials and operatives vehicles.

(c)

Temporary site access.

(d)

Signing system for works traffic.

(e)

Measures for the laying of dust, suppression of noise and
abatement of other nuisance arising from development works.

(f)

Location of all ancillary site buildings.

(g)

Measures to protect any trees, shrubbery and other landscape
features to be retained on the site during the course of
development.

(h)

Means of enclosure of the site.

(i)

Wheel washing equipment.

(j)

The parking of vehicles of the site operatives and visitors
A11

B13
(k)
(l)

The erection and maintenance of security hoarding.
Hours of construction and deliveries

Reason: This information is required prior to the commencement of the
development in order to safeguard the amenities of the surrounding
residential occupiers and to safeguard highway safety and the free flow
of traffic in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New
Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core Strategy
Adopted April 2012.
7

Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted details of secure
cycle parking facilities for the occupants of, and visitors to, shall have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and shall be fully implemented and shall thereafter be retained for use at
all times.
Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory cycle storage facilities and
in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy DM8
(Sustainable Transport for New Developments) of the LDF Core Strategy
Adopted April 2012.

8

Refuse storage facilities and recycling facilities shall be provided prior to
the occupation of the development hereby permitted in accordance with
details which shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development,
such facilities to be permanently retained at the site.
Reason: To ensure the provision of refuse facilities to the satisfaction of
the Council in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for
New Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core
Strategy Adopted April 2012.

9

Within 3 months of first occupation, evidence must be submitted to the
Council confirming that the development hereby approved has achieved
not less than the CO2 reductions (ENE1), internal water usage (WAT1)
standards equivalent to Code for Sustainable Homes level 4. Evidence
requirements are detailed in the "Schedule of evidence Required for Post
Construction Stage from Ene1 & Wat1 of the Code for Sustainable Homes
Technical Guide. Evidence to demonstrate a 19% reduction compared to
2013 part L regulations and internal water usage rates of 105l/p/ day must
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, unless
otherwise agreed in writing.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability and energy conservation in
accordance with Policies 5.2 (Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions) and
5.3 (Sustainable Design & Construction) of the London Plan (2016) and
Policy DM1 (Sustainable Design and Construction Standards) of the LDF
Core Strategy Adopted April 2012.

A12

B14
10

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town &
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order,
2015 (as amended) (or any Order revoking or re-enacting this Order) no
extensions (including porches or dormer windows) to the dwelling houses
or buildings shall be erected within the curtilage.
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenity of adjoining occupiers,
maintain adequate amenity space and safeguard the cohesive
appearance of the development in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design
Requirements for New Developments including House Extensions) of the
LDF Core Strategy Adopted April 2012.

11

Fences, walls or other means of enclosure shall be erected along the
boundaries of the site prior to the occupation of the dwellinghouses to
which they relate, in accordance with details which shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
shall thereafter be permanently retained.
Reason: In order to ensure the privacy of adjoining occupiers and visual
amenity of the area is retained in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design
Requirements for New Developments including House Extensions) of the
LDF Core Strategy Adopted April 2012.

12

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order
revoking or re-enacting this Order) no windows or other openings (other
than those hereby approved) shall be formed in the elevations and roof
above ground floor level of the building hereby approved without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of the
adjoining residential properties in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design
Requirements for New Developments including House Extensions) of the
LDF Core Strategy Adopted April 2012.

13

Before the beneficial occupation of the development hereby permitted,
any windows or rooflights in the rear elevation (and situated above ground
floor) shall be constructed so that no part of the framework less than 1.7m
above finished floor level shall be openable. Any part below that level
shall be fitted with, and retained in, obscure glazing to a minimum of level
3 on the standard scale. Any film used to achieve the requisite obscurity
level shall be non-perishable and tamper-proof, and must be replaced in
the event that it ceases to result in obscurity to level 3.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of the
adjoining residential properties in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design
Requirements for New Developments including House Extensions) of the
LDF Core Strategy Adopted April 2012.

A13

B15
14

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall be commenced
until tree protection to the standards set out in BS5837: 2005 "Protection
of Trees on Construction Sites" (figures 4 and 5) has been erected around
the trees shown on the approved drawings as being retained on the site.
The fencing is to be not less than 1.5 metres in height and shall enclose
either:(a)

the area described by the limit set out in Table 1 or

(b)

a radius as set out in Figure 2 of BS 5837: 2005, or alternatively

(c)

such an area as may have previously been approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Such tree protection shall be maintained during the course of
development, and no storage, site structures, parking or any other
operation shall be permitted within the area thereby protected. Within the
protected area:
(a)

levels shall not be raised or lowered in relation to the existing
ground level,

(b)

no roots shall be cut, trenches dug, or soil removed or drains and
services laid,

(c)

no buildings, site huts, roads or other engineering operations shall
be constructed or carried out,

(d)

no vehicles shall be driven over the area,

(e)

no materials or equipment shall be stored.

and the destruction by burning of any materials shall not take place on the
site or adjoining land unless the fires are at a minimum distance from the
protected area of 6.00 metres.
Reason: To prevent unnecessary damage occurring to the trees during
building operations, thereby safeguarding the visual amenities of the site
in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New
Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core Strategy
Adopted April 2012.
15

Prior to occupation of the development a landscaping scheme including
the detail of the removal of any trees shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following
completion of the development and the tree planting and landscaping
shall thereafter be maintained for five years to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs which die during this period shall
be replaced in the first available planting season, and the area shown to
be landscaped shall be permanently retained for that purpose only.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and also that the Local Planning
Authority shall be satisfied as to the details of the development in
accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for New

A14

B16
Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core Strategy
Adopted April 2012.
16

The roof of the buildings hereby permitted shall not be converted or used
as a balcony or a sitting out area, and no access shall be gained except
for maintenance purposes.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining residential
properties in accordance with Policy DM10 (Design Requirements for
New Developments including House Extensions) of the LDF Core
Strategy Adopted April 2012.

INFORMATIVE(S)
1

Street Naming and Numbering
Kingston Council has a statutory duty to officially name streets and
number properties within streets. As your planning application is likely to
require address changes, you are obliged to contact the Street naming
and numbering team to request official registration in accordance with
Part II of the London Buildings Act 1939. Failure to do this could result in
delays/omissions by the post office, emergency services and other
service providers. You can submit your application online via our website
www.kingston.gov.uk or via email to snn@kingston.gov.uk. Alternatively,
if you do not have internet access please call 020 8547 4606.

2

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions
of the Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation.
These cover such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the
erection of a new building or structure, the extension or alteration to a
building, change of use of buildings, installation of services, underpinning
works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council’s Building Control
Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form
together with detailed plans must be submitted for approval before any
building work is commenced.

3

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential area.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate
to your neighbours and do not undertake work before 8am or after 6pm
Monday to Friday, before 8am or after 1pm on a Saturday or at any time
on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby
approved are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of
mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council
does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation.
For further information and advice, please contact - Environmental Health
Department Pollution Section.
A15

B17

4

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain
formal agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner
proposes to:
carry out work to an existing party wall;
build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
in some circumstances, carry out groundwork’s within 6 metres of an
adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the
building owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or
Planning Controls. The Building Control Service will assume that an
applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the
Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found in “The Party
Walls etc. Act 1996 - Explanatory Booklet”.

5

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the
requirement in the National Planning Policy Framework to work with the
applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have made available
detailed advice in the form or our statutory policies in the Core Strategy,
Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal
written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service,
in order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to
submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably.

A16

C1

Appendix C

Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee 11 June 2019
Consultation Item

A

Register No:

18/16831/FUL

Address:

MAYFIELD OLD MALDEN LANE,
WORCESTER PARK, WORCESTER PARK,
KT4 7PU

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Royal Borough of Kingston 2007. Licence
number 100019285.
[Please note that this plan is intended to assist in locating the development it is not
the site plan of the proposed development which may have different boundaries.
Please refer to the application documents for the proposed site boundaries.]

C2

Ward:
Description of Proposal:

Plan Type:
Expiry Date:

Alexandra
Change of Use from Residential (C3) to a
Mixed Land Use of Residential (C3) and
Primary School (D1) for up to 72 children
and 15 staff at Mayfield, Old Malden Lane
with parking facilities/mini bus drop off and
collection from the Richard Challoner School
(additional information received)
Full Application
28/01/2019

This planning application has been brought to the Neighbourhood
Committee for comment. The application for the abovementioned
development will be determined at the Development Control Committee
in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.
The Proposal
1. This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the
existing 5 bedroom house and ancillary outbuildings to a mixed land use
including a 3 bedroom residential flat (Class C3) occupying the first and
second floors, and a full time forest primary school (Class D1) for up to 72
children and 15 staff occupying the ground floor and garden area, including
use of the 4 existing outbuildings for teaching accommodation.
2. The application is for a change of use only, and no extensions or additional
buildings are proposed.
3. The proposed primary school would be run by Little Forest Folk who opened
London's first full time outdoor nursery in Wimbledon in January 2015. Due to
demand for spaces they have since opened nurseries in Wandsworth,
Fulham, Barnes and Chiswick. The current proposal seeks to provide a
primary school, which follows the same outdoor education curriculum
approach. The current scheme would extend the outdoor environmental
education concept to primary school children aged between 4-11 years of
age.
4. During the school time (daytime) the ground floor of the existing dwelling
house will provide:
● A 25.1sqm technology and design room (capacity for 12 children),
● A 23.9 sqm dining hall with learning space (capacity 8 children)
● A 27.4sqm "Focus on Mastery" room (capacity for 12 children),
● A 15.9sqm kitchen (for up to 6 children);
● Toilets; and

C3

●

A utility room.

5. The four existing outbuildings would be retained and converted for the
following use:● Shed 1 converted to an Art studio (for up to 16 children);
● Shed 2 converted to a Science laboratory (for up to 6 children);
● Shed 3 converted to a workshop (for up to 6 children);
● Shed 4 converted to a greenhouse (for up to 6 children).
6. The proposal includes on site outdoor area for wildlife investigation, bug
hotels, water experiments and conservation projects to enhance the ecological
value of the site. Within the curtilage of the site, there will be an open outdoor
storytelling area and mini theatre. No structures or built form would be
required for these uses.
7. The proposed school would have school hours between 9.30am and 3.30pm
Monday to Thursday term time only (144 days a year).
8. It is advised that whilst initially the school would cater primarily for those
children attending the existing nurseries, that as the school becomes more
established, the school would hope to take a greater proportion of pupils from
the local area, reducing the reliance on the mini buses. It is advised that the
school would also "provide 12.5% of the school spaces as free school spaces
for less privileged local children, who may want to attend".
9. The school would operate a daily minibus service which would collect and
drop children off at pick up points. The application originally proposed that the
mini buses would drop off and collect from the neighbouring River Club site.
The travel arrangements have subsequently been revised, and it is now
proposed that the mini buses would drop off and pick up from the Richard
Challoner School, which is 560m to the north west of the application site.
10. As part of the submitted Travel Plan, it is proposed that all parents of students
and all staff members would sign agreements that they are not to travel to the
school by car. They would be informed that the access road is private and that
they are only to meet at the minibus collection points or travel by foot or
bicycle and enter through a new gate in the northern boundary.
11. The Richard Challoner School have agreed that the Little Forest mini buses,
with children and staff, can drop off and pick up on their premises, off the
public highway. The Agreement with the Richard Challoner School would be
for 2 years. Accordingly, this application seeks a temporary two year
permission, which would also allow for a continued search for more
permanent school premises.

C4

12. In terms of the upper floors, it is proposed that the first and second floor of the
existing house would be converted into a self-contained 3 bedroom flat, with
kitchen, living room and 1 bedroom on the first floor and 2 bedrooms on the
second floor. The ground floor would be used by the residents after school
hours and on weekends. The flat would be occupied by the Founders of the
school and their children. The garden space to the east of the house will be
accessible to residents on weekends and holidays. The existing forecourt
parking area would be retained for the residents.
Previous Relevant History
04/16316/FUL

Erection of single storey side
extension

Permit 5 Year
Condition and
Conditions
04/08/2004

Consultation Responses
13.

Neighbouring Occupiers: Notification letters were sent and a site notice
displayed on the access road.
Number of objectors: 29
Number of supporters: 35

14.

Objections: The grounds are summarised as follows:
i. Highway Issues: The existing junction is for private access only and has
very limited traffic. It is a dangerous junction with vehicles travelling at
significant speed along Old Malden Lane not being able to see cars or
vehicles that are turning out of the lane. It is located on a bend which
worsens this problem. Placing additional vehicle movements, particularly
from the proposed use of a school The statement on access by people,
children, and parking is just not practical or enforceable.
ii. Notwithstanding the statements regarding the non-use of the road, the
reality will be very different due to peoples attitude as to why they need to
use the access road with their vehicle or deliveries to the proposed school.
What provision is made for visitors to arrive during the day, open evenings,
etc. The unmade road is narrow and passing places will ruin the verges.
iii. Travel plan assumptions unrealistic.
iv. The walking bus route is quite a hike for youngsters and question the
suitability of this walk in bad weather through what are pretty boggy areas
when it rains. The only other alternative would be to walk them along Old
Malden Lane, a dangerous road at the best of times.

C5

v. Old Maiden Lane is a narrow road, mini buses dropping off children from
out of this area is no benefit and will cause problems, parking or dropping
off at Richard Challoner school is not a solution, this school is so busy with
their own mini buses and the junction near the school is already too busy,
this will cause more traffic problems.
vi. Inappropriate and incompatible development in Metropolitan Open Land –
contrary to policy, and creates a dangerous precedent in terms of failing to
protect the current usage and amenity value of the area. Whilst the use for
purposes of sport and recreation is in line with current land usage in this
area, the use for other commercial purposes is not. Previous proposal for
school within land at River Club was refused given MOL designation and
increased car traffic onto Old Malden Lane.
vii. Noise disturbance to local residents, also note that the applicant's noise
assessment was carried out at a time when a playing field was in use at the
fields owned by Richard Challoner School. These fields are only in use
once or twice a week and so their contribution to noise levels should not
form part of the background noise and as a result of this the conclusions of
the applicants report are misleading and should not be relied upon.
viii. Drainage - currently a domestic cesspit.
ix. Suitability of accommodation to provide schooling.
x. Ecology: No ecological impact assessment carried out (subsequently
submitted).
15. In addition to the above, a resident's group representing up to 8 households
has submitted counsel opinion/objection and detailed highway objection to the
proposal. The issues raised are discussed in the main body of the report.
16. Support: The letters of support relate to the unique educational opportunity for
local children, understanding the importance of nature and sustainable living.
It would open up the education options for children and their parents.
17. Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS): The proposal is
unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological
interest.
18. Epsom & Ewell Borough Council - The main concerns of our residents are the
unsuitable footpaths for children walking to school along Old Malden Lane and
the access to Old Malden Lane not providing suitable visibility splays. Epsom

C6

and Ewell Borough Council considers these concerns to be valid planning
concerns and therefore would like to state that we have no objection in
principle subject to the access of Old Malden Lane being considered by the
highways authority of Kingston Upon Thames as safe and acceptable for
children at key stages 1-2
19. Secure by Design (Metropolitan Police): Overall no adverse considerations
with the change of use or the use of a suitably organised walking bus.
However, note that path and playing fields can become waterlogged. Also,
query what happens in respect of 'open evenings' or 'parents evenings'
normally associated with schools causing localised traffic issues, sometimes
several times a year.
20. Achieving for Children: Generally supportive, consider that if the proposed
Little Forest Folk primary school is established, it will help to ease the forecast
demand for two additional forms of Reception entry places from within the
Surbiton area. That is because the Little Forest Folk have already received a
significant number of expressions of interest from families living in Surbiton.
Little Forest Folk is a social enterprise which runs five popular and successful
nurseries for two to five year old children in south-west London, and will no
doubt run very successful primary schools also. Ofsted has graded three of
the nurseries as 'outstanding' and the other two are yet to be inspected.
21. Neighbourhood Engineering: No highway objection. Supported by a Transport
Statement and Travel Plan, both of which are robust.
The proposed access arrangements for staff and pupils, whereby both would
arrive by minibus and then walk to the Mayfield School site via a route from
the Richard Challoner School Car Park, continuing along the boundary of that
school's playing fields before arriving at the Mayfield School site is considered
acceptable, providing that the rights of access over the 2-year school
operational period are secured by Section 106 Agreement.
It is noted that there have been objections received concerning the
unsuitability of the B264 Old Malden Lane as a means of pedestrian access
into the site (via the private access road leading to Mayfield). Highways share
this concern and would expect the applicant to take all reasonable measures
to ensure that access to the school via this route is restricted for only
delivery/servicing and emergency access.
22. Travel Plan Officer: The travel plan advises the school will put on mini buses
for all the pupils not in walking distance (there will be a walking bus for them)
and have parents and staff sign an agreement not to drive them to school.

C7

The revised travel plan is agreed as a functioning travel plan. The only
misgivings are is that there seems little potential to change modal shift from
mini bus use to more sustainable modes, and if children need to be collected
or dropped off later the parents/carer will have to drive. The contingency in
case of lateness seems sound. Recommend that the Action Plan gives
consideration to switch to E.V or hybrid mini-buses within 3-5 years and
installing charging points for the mini-buses.
23.

Environmental Health Officer (Pollution Control): Initially raised objection due
to insufficient information in respect of noise generation. The objection has
been overcome following submission of a detailed acoustic report, and the
EHO is satisfied that the noise of children will be sufficiently attenuated by the
separation distance (between the children and nearest residences), screening
and the existing ambient noise level (including its acoustic character) for there
to be no demonstrable impact upon local residences and meeting levels of
NOEL (No observed effect level) according to planning policy.
Site and Surroundings

24.

Mayfield is a 5 bedroom Edwardian house, with a garden which contains
4 outbuildings. The curtilage of the site is approximately 5000 sqm, and
together with the access road, and the overall site area would be
approximately 11,607 sqm inclusive of footway, access road and
Richard Challoner School access.

25.

The site is located within designated Metropolitan Open Land, in an area
which is open in character, with three houses in the immediate vicinity
which are surrounded by open fields and sports pitches and playing
fields.

26.

The site is accessed by a private unmade single track road off Old
Malden Lane. It is within close proximity to the borough boundary, and
the access onto Old Malden Lane which is approximately 200m to the
west, is within the Borough of Epsom and Ewell. The private access road
is owned by Rokeby School.

27.

To the west is the shared boundary with The Coach House which has an
access drive that runs the length of the boundary to the actual property
which is sited to the north west of the application site. To the west of the
Coach House's access drive is Wighill, which is also a residential house.

28.

The northern and north eastern boundaries of the application site are
bound by Hogsmill River and Six Acre Meadow public open spaces. To

C8

the east of the application site is an open field beyond which is the
Hogsmill River and then residential properties fronting onto Old Malden
Road. To the south of the private road is the River Club leisure facility.
29.

The character of the site is relatively open, with the small grouping of
houses surrounded by sports pitches, leisure uses and public open
space. There are several sports fields within the locality, including
Richard Challoner School grounds to the north west of the site.

30.

The site has very poor public transport accessibility (PTAL 1B). The Old
Malden Neighbourhood Centre is located approximately 800m to the
north and Malden Manor train station is approximately 900m from the site
if one travels along the roads with formal footpaths. There are also
well-established footpaths through the public open space that link the
application site with Malden Manor Station. Worcester Park and Tolworth
railway stations are approximately 1.4km and 2km from the property.

31.

The site is not within a Conservation area. The existing building is not
Listed Area of Archaeological Significance.

32.

There are no Tree Preservation Orders on site but there is a Tree
Preservation Order covering a group of trees at Wighill and the Coach
House, the properties to the west of the site.

33.

The existing house and all the existing outbuildings are located within
Flood Zone 1.

34.

Other Core Strategy site designations include the Green Chains, and the
Tolworth Key Area of Change. The Hogsmill Valley SINC (Site of
Importance for Nature Conservation), which encompasses Six Acre
Meadow, directly abuts the sites’s northern garden boundary.
Assessment

35.

The main considerations material to the determination of this application
are:
● Principle of Proposed Development, including MOL and land use
considerations
● Impact on Character of Area
● Impact on Neighbour’s Residential Amenity
● Highways, Access and Parking
● Legal Agreements (including the ability to bind other parties to
secure access arrangements)
● Sustainability

C9

●

Other Material
Biodiversity

Considerations,

including

Drainage

and

Conclusion
36.

All comments raised will be taken into account in the assessment of the
planning application.

D1
Kingston Town Neighbourhood Committee - 4 June 2019
South of the Borough Neighbourhood Committee - 4 June 2019
Maldens and Coombe Neighbourhood Committee - 11 June 2019
Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee - 11 June 2019

Appendix D

Early Engagement on the Local Plan
Report by Assistant Director, Strategic Planning & Infrastructure
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Malcolm Self, Portfolio Holder for Planning Policy,
Culture & Heritage
Purpose
To engage with the Neighbourhood Committee and seek comments from Members on the Local
Plan Early Engagement as part of the public consultation.
Recommendation
To resolve that the comments of the Neighbourhood Committee are reported back to the
Strategic Housing and Planning Committee when it considers the Local Plan Early Engagement
document and the Committee encourages individuals and organisations to submit their own
responses.
Benefits to the Community:
The Local Plan Early Engagement document is the first stage in the preparation of the
Borough’s Local Plan. This is the first public consultation on the new Local Plan for Kingston
Borough, thereby allowing the community to help shape the document from the outset.
Key Points
●

The Council is preparing a new Local Plan which will replace the current Core
Strategy (2012) and Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan (2008). Planning
applications must be determined in accordance with the local plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. For the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames, this will be the new Local Plan and the London Plan, and therefore the
new Local Plan is critical in shaping the future of the borough.

●

This is the first public stage of development of a new local plan for the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames. The consultation period runs from 1 May to 31
July 2019.

●

There are very limited legal requirements for this stage, which only requires the
notification of the council’s intent to develop a new local plan, and must ask the
public what that local plan should contain. However, this stage is used to undertake
a significant public engagement exercise to seek the views of Kingston’s varied
communities and stakeholders about the future of the borough from 2019 to 2041. It
is the most open and crucial stage of engagement as a local plan must be shaped
by early, proportionate and effective engagement with a wide range of groups.

●

Neighbourhood Committee Members are invited to provide comments on the Local
Plan Early Engagement (at this link: Local Plan Early Engagement (Regulation 18)
May 2019 “Kingston: Looking Forward Together” ) and Site Assessments
documents (at this link: Local Plan Site Assessments (May 2019)

●

Responses to this engagement and statutory consultation will inform the
development of the vision, objectives and planning policies that will be contained in

D2
a future local plan. The feedback will be developed into a range of options, each of
which will then be assessed using the sustainability appraisal process, to
understand their economic, social and environmental impacts. This will help ensure
the final local plan is an appropriate strategy for the borough, taking into account all
reasonable alternatives.

Context
1.

The Council has started the process to replace its current Local Plan, which is made
up of two documents called the Core Strategy (2012) and the Kingston Town Centre
Area Action Plan (2008). There is a need to replace these documents due to the
changing policy context, including national policy and the London Plan.

2.

On 28 March 2019 the Strategic Housing and Planning Committee approved the
Early Engagement Local Plan and Site Assessments for the purposes of public
consultation. The consultation was launched on 1 May 2019 and is running for a
three month period until the end of July 2019.

3.

This stage of public consultation is a statutory stage, in line with Regulation 18 of
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, and
as this is the first stage of consultation, the council must take the opportunity to
reach out to as many members of the community as possible, including, residents,
businesses, visitors, infrastructure providers and councillors.

The Consultation Document
4.

The Local Plan Early Engagement consultation document, called “Kingston: Looking
forward together”, explains why a new plan is needed, and asks how we can tackle
the challenges facing the borough and how we can help to shape the change that is
needed over the period 2019 to 2041. A new plan will enable us to consider the
changes that the borough will face in the future as well as any impacts from
changes across London.

5.

The number of people living in the borough is projected to significantly increase
over the next two decades, and a challenging housing target set by the Mayor of
London is expected as part of the new London Plan, of about 30,000 new homes
between 2019 and 2041. It is therefore critical that we plan positively to meet this
challenge. We also need to ensure the workplaces, infrastructure and services are
developed alongside these homes to support our existing and growing population.
We need to consider the type of places we want to create, and the impact on the
health and well-being of residents, and our impact on the local and wider
environment.

6.

The consultation raises key issues and questions that will help to inform and set the
vision of the Local Plan and ultimately direct how our borough will continue to be a
successful place in which to live, work and visit.

7.

We have also published a list of 153 sites around the borough that have been
submitted to the council, either as part of the Call for Sites exercise that we carried
out last year, or as part of work by the Greater London Authority. Within the list of
sites are some council-owned assets. We welcome comments on all sites and the
proposals that were put forward. It is important to note that the council does not
have a view on any specific proposals at this stage, and we are seeking views on all
sites from the community before assessing the merits of the proposal put forward.
Members are welcome to comment on specific sites.

D3
Consultation with Neighbourhood Committees

8.

The key issues that Members may want to respond to include:
○

Where should the growth in housing be located?
Our current housing target is expected to double from 643 new units per
year to 1,364 units, as proposed in the draft new London Plan. We also have a
backlog of housing need. We currently have about 1,000 homes being built
across the borough and another 1,500 homes which has planning permission,
but they are not yet under construction. We have estimated a number of windfall
sites that will come forward, and a capacity on large sites through work
undertaken with the Greater London Authority. All of these elements could
provide the borough with an additional 15,700 new homes by 2041, which is
approximately half of the proposed new London Plan housing target for the
borough of about 30,000 additional homes between 2019 and 2041. We
therefore need to find approximately 15,000 more homes and we put forward
two ideas as to how this might be achieved:
Scenario1: Widespread growth - The Mayor expects half of our annual
housing target of 1,364 per year to come from ‘small sites’ (625). Small sites
development can come from extending and redeveloping existing homes to
make a larger number of new homes in areas within walking distance of stations
or town centres. Development would need to make the most of every site, which
would see high densities in town centre locations and around transport hubs to
help achieve the housing need.
Scenario 2: Concentrated growth - this looks at how more development could
come forward particularly within the potential new Opportunity Area, and within
the most accessible locations, such as near railway stations, transport hubs and
town centres. This could be supported by the arrival of Crossrail 2. Buildings in
these locations would be at very high densities and include a mix of uses.

○

Should we be thinking about whether it would be appropriate to build on
parts of the Green Belt and/or Metropolitan Open Land to meet our
housing needs?
The protection of our green spaces, including the Green Belt and
Metropolitan Open Land (MOL), is a priority. We therefore need to try our
best to accommodate all of our housing need within built up areas. If this is
not possible, an option may be to build on parts of the Green Belt and MOL,
which would enable less dense development elsewhere in the borough.

○

What infrastructure (including transport, community facilities, healthcare,
education and leisure) is needed to support the borough now and in the
future?
Wherever in the borough we choose to deliver our new housing and other
services, good infrastructure in the right place, and at the right time, is
essential to meeting the future needs of Kingston’s residents, businesses
and visitors. This needs effective planning; efficient and appropriate use of
land and facilities; and working with key partners such as Transport for
London, and utilities providers.

○

What type of workspaces should be provided and where?
More people commute out of the borough to work than commute into the
borough for work. We want to encourage more businesses and jobs to be
created in the borough so that more residents have the opportunity to work
here. Should we continue to protect our designated employment locations?

D4

9.

○

What is the future for our town centres?
Kingston town centre is the third best performing retail destination in London
(based on retail expenditure). However, significant changes in how people
shop, especially internet shopping, and competition from other retail
destinations means that we need to think about how Kingston town centre,
our district centres and local centres should adapt, so they continue to be
successful places that people want to visit.

○

Should we be doing more to attract and encourage visitors to the
borough, and if so what? How do we support our town centres and should
we encourage more night time activity?
Our heritage and public spaces are great assets for our town centres and
more broadly across the borough. They create an environment that attracts
visitors and provide spaces for markets, cultural activities and other types of
events. More visitor attractions will bring more investment to the borough.

○

How should we help people move around the borough?
Improvements to the transport network will be essential to support new
housing and other development. We identify a number of infrastructure
improvement projects in the Early Engagement document. We also need to
promote sustainable travel through the Local Plan, and improve mobility and
accessibility on our streets and transport networks, particularly for those who
are less mobile.

Members can also provide comments on any other matters not covered by the
consultation, and design your own vision of the borough by adding pins to a map
using the online consultation portal, together with comments, showing where you
would like housing, infrastructure, workplaces, and areas for biodiversity and nature
conservation.

Consultations
10.

At the start of the consultation we notified all contacts held on the Strategic Planning
consultation database of the details of the consultation, including where to find the
consultation documents and how to respond. These include statutory consultees
identified in the planning regulations, as well as other ‘general consultees’, i.e. those
who have registered to receive updates and given the council permission to use
their information for this purpose. We also notified all councillors of the consultation.

11.

There will be consultation events for people to participate in and opportunities to
engage in different ways online. The consultation has a very broad communications
strategy, using both external (e.g social media, bus backs, stations, local
magazines) and council channels (e.g the council’s social media account, screens
at Guildhall, libraries) to advertise the consultation. The programme will work to
target a wide range of communities and demographic representatives across the
borough to ensure that we are planning for everyone; not just those who tend to
respond to council consultations.

12.

The consultation approach meets the requirements of the council’s adopted and
draft new Statement of Community Involvement in order to meet the legal tests for
the local plan. We have recently consulted on a revised Statement of Community
Involvement and we will review any comments received in order to apply any new
methods to this Local Plan consultation if appropriate.

Timescale

D5

13.

The minimum statutory period to consult at the Regulation 18 stage of the Local
Plan is six weeks. The council is undertaking consultation over an extended 12
week period due to the importance of the document and the need to maximise the
number of people it engages with. The consultation period runs until 31st July 2019.

14.

Following reporting to these Neighbourhood Committees, Members will have seven
more weeks to respond to the consultation, and to also encourage local residents to
get involved.

15.

Once the consultation has closed, the responses will be reviewed and key issues
raised through the consultation will be summarised alongside the council’s response
to those key issues in the statutory Consultation Statement. The council’s response
will set out how we have taken the key issues raised into account and to what
extent we have addressed the matters raised. This will be used to inform the
development of the new Local Plan including informing various options for the
borough which will be reviewed through an Integrated Impact Assessment
incorporating sustainability issues.

Resource Implications
16.

The costs of producing the Local Plan and undertaking the Early Engagement
public consultation are met from existing budgets.

Legal Implications
17.

Development of a Local Plan is pursuant to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended), the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) (as amended by the
Housing and Planning Act 2016) and the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning)(England) Regulations 2012 (as amended by the Town and Country Planning
(Local Planning)(England)(Amendment) Regulations 2016). The current stage is as
prescribed in Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning)(England) Regulations 2012 (as amended).

18.

Regulation 18 requires notification of specific and general bodies and persons,
including anyone who may have an interest. The consultation must:
1. notify those persons or bodies that we intend to prepare a local plan, and the
subject of that plan, and
2. invite them to make representations as to what that local plan should contain.

19.

In line with regulations, all comments must be made in a public capacity and will be
published as part of the plan-making process. Names of respondents (and where
applicable companies/ organisations) will be published, but personal contact details
will be removed from documents. Each response will be published in full including
who made the representation.

Risk Assessment
20.

The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) states that local plans should be
shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and
communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and
operators and statutory consultees. The Local Plan will need to satisfy a number of
legal ‘tests of soundness’ at Examination concerning its preparation, which are to
show that it has been positively prepared, justified, is effective and consistent with

D6
national policy. The council must therefore undertake effective wide-ranging public
consultation to avoid a challenge in this regard at the Examination stage.

Equality Assessment
21.

An EQIA is not required at this stage because this consultation does not seek to
choose between or promote a particular strategy, policy or approach. Rather it asks
open questions to seek a range of views. Specific equalities assessment will be
undertaken at the next stage of plan development, as part of the Integrated Impact
Assessment, to help inform decisions about the preferred approach or option.

22.

It is noted that efforts will be made to ensure the responses are representative of
the borough as a whole, rather than the more common outcome where
representations tend to come from a much more narrow demographic range than is
seen in the wider community.

Health Implications
23.

This stage is the first step in the preparation of a new Local Plan. The Local Plan
will cover health and wellbeing implications and will include approaches to
improving the health of our borough population.

Road Network Implications
24.

The scale of growth set out in the Local Plan Early Engagement document, and as
envisaged in the new draft London Plan, will have significant road network
implications which will need to be mitigated over the lifetime of the plan. These are
set out in the Kingston Transport Study which is available as background evidence.

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
25.

This stage of consultation is the first step towards a new Local Plan. As the
statutory plan which directs sustainable development, a Local Plan has a key role in
securing positive environmental outcomes, including environmental and natural
protections, resource use and pollution.

26.

An Integrated Impact Assessment will be produced to develop the Local Plan and
will include environmental objectives to test the plan.

Annexes on electronic version of the agenda:
●

Annex 1 - The Local Plan Early Engagement (at this link: Local Plan Early
Engagement (Regulation 18) May 2019 “Kingston: Looking Forward Together” )

●

Annex 2 - Site Assessments documents (at this link: Local Plan Site Assessments
(May 2019)

Background papers held by author of the report, Lisa Fairmaner, Corporate Head
of Planning. lisa.fairmaner@kingston.gov.uk:
● Draft New London Plan showing Minor Suggested Changes (August, 2018)
● Draft Statement of Community Involvement (April, 2019)

D7

Annex 1

Local Plan

Early Engagement (Regulation 18) May 2019

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

D8

2

D9

Foreword
Many residents and visitors are attracted to the
borough because of its rich history and character.
Kingston town is a regional retail and commercial
centre with an attractive riverfront, and other district
centres each have their own distinctive characters. We
also benefit from widespread green spaces and parks.

the process towards our new plan, which is planned
to be adopted in late 2021 or early 2022. It sets out
some of the challenges we face and seeks your views
as to how we may meet those challenges. The results
of this consultation will feed into and help formulate
the first draft of our new plan and there will be
further opportunities for public engagement as the
plan progresses.

The borough has seen huge change and innovation
throughout its history, with the last few decades
seeing steady growth. Looking to the future, the
borough of Kingston will see further significant growth
to meet the ever increasing demand for new homes,
jobs and infrastructure. The draft London Plan, issued
by the Mayor of London in December 2017, sets our
borough massively increased housing targets - we are
challenging those targets but, whatever the outcome,
it is clear that we need to see a step change in building
more homes to meet the needs of our residents. The
Local Plan is the document that sets out our long term
vision for the required growth, whilst at the same time
protecting the rich character, heritage and culture for
future generations to enjoy.

Councillor Malcolm Self
Portfolio Holder for Planning Policy, Culture & Heritage
Deputy Leader of the Council

Our current Local Plan was adopted in 2012 and now
needs updating. This consultation is the first stage in

Councillor Jon Tolley
Portfolio Holder for Resident Engagement

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

We are committed to involving all communities in
this new plan so please do let us know your views and
please also encourage your family, friends, neighbours
and colleagues to respond. We are also looking for
feedback from people outside the borough: those who
work, study or visit, and people who may want to live
here in the future. It’s exciting to start this journey
to a new Local Plan and we look forward to hearing
from you.

3

D10
Local Plan: Early Engagement

4

D11

Table of Contents
1.

What is this about?

06

2.

The future evolution of the borough of Kingston

10

3.

Should we also think about...

22

4.

Infrastructure

24

5.

Design		

26

6.

Housing

28

7.

Businesses and jobs

35

8.

Transport

46

9.

Is there anything else...

50

10.

How to get involved		

51

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

5

D12
Local Plan: Early Engagement

1.

What is this about?

This consultation document is the start of developing a
new Local Plan for the borough. It sets out why we need
a new plan, how we can tackle the challenges facing
the borough and how we can shape the change that is
needed. This plan will cover the period 2019 to 2041.
The number of people living in the borough of Kingston
is set to increase by nearly 34,0001 between 2019 and
2041. This means that we must build more homes,
workplaces and services to support our growing
population, which will change the look and feel of our
borough. We can manage this change to create places
which give people in the borough of Kingston a good
quality of life, contributing to their health and wellbeing.
We need your vision for the future of the Royal Borough
of Kingston. What will our neighbourhoods feel like
in the future? What homes and workplaces do we want?

How do we move around? How do we use our parks,
squares and streets? What role do our health services
play in our lives? How do we learn? How do places feel
as we change and grow older? The places we create have
a huge impact on all of these aspects of our lives - and
that is why we need you to share your thoughts on the
evolution of the borough over the next few decades.
We will use your views to help inform this process and
the policies and any development site allocations it
contains. You don’t need to answer every question, but
we encourage you to answer as many of these as possible
to help inform our new plan. As part of this consultation,
we have included the ideas people have already suggested
for potential development sites - please see the Sites
Assessments. Please share your views
and put forward your ideas.

What is a Local Plan?
A Local Plan sets out a vision for the future of the
borough, and includes local planning policies to
manage that change, and guiding the future location
and type of developments and land uses, such as
housing, shops, education and healthcare facilities,
restaurants and offices. These policies are key
considerations when deciding whether to approve
planning permissions for development. Government
policy requires us to have an up to date plan which
positively plans for the needs of the borough and is
flexible enough to respond to future changes.
The borough of Kingston’s current Local Plan is
made up of:
• the Core Strategy, adopted in 2012, sets out the
long-term vision for the borough, the objectives
we are trying to achieve, and policies to deliver
that vision. We also apply the policies when we
consider planning applications.
• Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan adopted
in 2008; and
1

• the South London Waste Plan adopted in 2012
and shared with the boroughs of Sutton, Merton
and Croydon.
A lot has changed since these plans were prepared,
and the objectives and policies they contain do not
now provide an overall strategy for the future to
meet the need for homes, jobs and infrastructure.
That is why we are reviewing it.
The council’s Local Plan forms part of the wider
Development Plan for the borough. The London
Plan, prepared by the Mayor of London, also
forms part of the Development Plan. When we
assess planning applications, we use the whole
Development Plan: the borough of Kingston’s
Local Plan and the London Plan.
Importantly, our Local Plan must be in “general
conformity” with the London Plan. We also need
to be consistent with national planning policy.
Because of this, we do not have complete freedom
about what we can or cannot put in our Local Plan.

Greater London Authority 2016 - based housing led population projections

6

D13

Developing a Local Plan
This is the first stage of developing a Local Plan, and
is the widest engagement stage where we gather all
of the ideas which will inform the development of the
plan. This is a statutory stage, referred to as Regulation
18 because it is Regulation 18 of the Town and Country
Planning (Local Plans) Regulations 2012.

After this stage, the council will submit the plan
to the Secretary of State. Only minor changes can
be made at this stage - if more significant changes
are needed, the Regulation 19 consultation must
be run again.

The Secretary of State will appoint an independent
inspector to consider whether the new Local
After this stage, we will use the consultation feedback
Plan is ‘sound’ and the necessary legal tests have
and evidence to draft a new Local Plan. We will then
consult on the draft document to enable the community been met. This includes whether the consultation
was carried out in accordance with the borough’s
to give us their views about the policies and strategy.
Statement of Community Involvement (a statutory
This is not a statutory stage, but the council welcomes
document which sets out how we will consult the
the views of the community at this stage.
community) and the borough’s Local Development
We then need to publish the final version that we think is
Scheme (a statutory document which sets out the
ready to submit to the Secretary of State for consideration.
timetable for developing the plan). The inspector
This is a statutory stage, Regulation 19. At this stage, the
will hold public hearings to hear from people who
community should only comment on the ‘soundness’ of
do not believe the plan is sound.
the document. Plans are ‘sound’ if they are:
The inspector will then advise the council whether
a. Positively prepared - providing a strategy which, as
they believe the plan is sound, or can be made
a minimum, seeks to meet the needs of the area
sound by making changes to the document. All of
and in appropriate circumstance, any unmet needs
these changes are then consulted on before the
from neighbouring areas;
plan can be adopted.
b. Justified - an appropriate strategy, taking into account
More detailed information about plan-making can
any reasonable alternatives and based on evidence;
be found on the government’s website (gov.uk).
c. Effective - deliverable over the plan period,
The way we consult and engage with you is
based on effective joint working across borough
set out in the new draft Statement of
boundaries on strategic matters; and
Community Involvement 2.
d. Consistent with national policy.

Development
Plan
Development Plan
The London
Plan

South London
Waste Plan

Kingston’s
Local Plan

Any Neighbourhood Plans

Regional

SubRegional

Local

Neighbourhood

Kingston
Statement
of Community
Involvement

2

Supplementary
Planning
Documents

Local
Development
Scheme

Community
Infrastructure
Levy Charging
Schedule

Authority’s
Monitoring
Report

Community
Infrastructure
Levy Regulation
123 List

See New Local Plan webpage. Consultation on the new draft Statement of Community Involvement is running until 24 May 2019

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

Developing a Local Plan
First draft stage

Public

7

Current target
Core
Strategy
Strategy target

Current
housing
delivery
delivery

Current
London
Plan target
Plan target

Proposed
London assessment
Government
Plan target
of need
Plan target
assessment of need

D14
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Annual
AnnualHousing
housingTargets
target
Annual
Housing
Targets
London-wide
London-wide

45,000
45,000

65,000
65,000

100,000
100,000

Current housing Proposed housing
Government
Current
housing Proposed
housing assessment
Government
target
target
of need
target
target
assessment of need

Kingston-wide
Kingston-wide
375
375

420
420

643
643

1,364
1,364

Current Core
Current target
Core
Strategy
Strategy target

Current housing
Current
housing
delivery
delivery

Current London
Current
London
Plan target
Plan target

1,527
1,527

Proposed London
Government
Proposed
London assessment
Government
Plan target
of need
Plan target
assessment of need

Housing
When our Core Strategy was adopted, we were planning to
deliver 375 homes per year, between 2011 and 2021, a target
set out in the 2011 London Plan. This target was almost
doubled in the 2015 London Plan, to 643, which is the current
target we are measured against by government. A draft new
London Plan has been published and this proposes doubling
the target again to 1,364 homes per year. This new target has
been considered at a public examination in 2019 and a new,
higher target (i.e. higher than the current 643) is expected at
the end of 2019. (It should be noted that the council objects
to the 1,364 target). Over the whole plan period proposed for
the new borough of Kingston Local Plan, 2019 to 2041, this
would be about 30,000 new homes over 22 years.
Nationally, there has been a failure to deliver enough
homes to keep up with population growth. This is
particularly pressing in London and the South East. The
government believes Greater London needs to provide
100,000 homes per year. The Mayor of London believes
that about 66,000 homes are needed every year. The
current London Plan targets would deliver 42,000 homes
per year and the new London Plan increases this to 65,000
8

homes per year, almost achieving the estimated need,
but well below the government estimate of London’s
need. Either way, and even if population projections drop,
there is now such a backlog of need (such as young adults
unable to move into their own home) we still need to
significantly increase housing numbers.
In the past, about half of London’s housing target has been
met by the 12 inner London boroughs. The new London
Plan seeks to significantly increase housing delivery in outer
London, particularly around stations and by bringing forward
a lot more housing on smaller sites. The new plan increases
the contribution from the 21 outer London boroughs to
two-thirds of the total; almost all of the additional housing
is to be provided in outer London. This includes doubling the
borough of Kingston’s housing target. We do not know what
the housing target will be for the borough following the
public examination of the Mayor’s London Plan. However,
the reality is that we need to see a significant increase in
the amount of housing being built. We need to positively
plan for this increase over the next 20 years to make sure it
creates the homes and places we need.

Involvement

Documents

Levy Regulation
123 List

Levy Charging
Schedule

Report

Scheme

D15

Local Plan
process
Developing
a Local
Plan

1

First draft stage
with consultation

3

Public
Examination stage

2

Consultation on the
Early Engagement
document

5

4

Second draft stage proposed submission version

Adoption

Employment and other activities

The environment

Alongside housing, we need to think about how we
create spaces for people to work and access the
services they need. This includes retail, food and drink,
industrial and light industrial activities, office-based
businesses, health, education and leisure facilities,
and a whole range of other workspaces. Space is also
needed for charities, clubs and places to worship.
These uses and activities contribute to the culture,
character and vibrancy of our neighbourhoods.

Development can be an important factor in global
greenhouse gas emissions and, through the London
Plan, larger developments in the borough of Kingston
are expected to be built to zero emission standards.
Consideration also needs to be given to reducing the
impact of transportation emissions, and on noise,
local air pollution and congestion.

The income of the borough’s residents is currently
much higher than the income of its workers.
The provision of more highly skilled and highly paid
jobs, alongside the existing valued jobs in the borough,
would benefit the local economy, the environment
and wellbeing of residents. To achieve this, we need
to create a more diverse and balanced economy.
Importantly, even with significant investment,
our transport systems would not be able to cope
if housing growth was not matched by local
employment for people who want to live and
work in the borough.
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

The borough of Kingston’s local environment has
a significant impact on health and wellbeing.
Well-planned places encourage people to come
together as a community, bring nature into everyday
life and create an environment where being active is
easy and enjoyable. The borough also needs to make
space for nature, creating habitats and ensuring our
natural environment can continue to play its life-giving
role. Development and change needs to respect and
enhance those things that make our neighbourhoods
and spaces so treasured today.

9

D16
Local Plan: Early Engagement

2.

The future evolution of the borough of Kingston

Kingston

Norbiton

Berrylands

Surbiton

New
Malden

Malden Manor
Worcester Park

Tolworth

Railway lines
Railway station
Key road network
Railway Lines
Railway Station

Chessington
North

Keys

Key road network
Kingston Town Centre

Borough
boundary
District Centres
Chessington
South

´

´

0

District centres
Locally Significant Industrial Site
Green Belt
Strategic Industrial Site

Proposed
Opportunity
Areas
Locally Significant
Industrial
Site

Not to scale

Metropolitan Open Land

Green Belt
Crossrail
2 route and station
Possible Opportunity Area boundary
Strategic Industrial Site

0.5

1

1:50,000

Borough
Area subject to Policy H2
of boundary
Metropolitan
Open
Land
the draft London Plan (800m
buffers
around
town Area
centers
Possible
Opportunity
Designation of an
Opportunity
Area
inboundary
the draft London Plan is
andBorough
railwayboundary
stations)

expected to deliver 9,000 homes and 5,000 jobs over the next
15+ years

2 Kilometers

17% of the borough is designated as Green Belt
15% of the borough is designated as Metropolitan Open Land

0.5 1: Borough
1
2 Kilometers
Figure
Context

0

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).
10

Kingston town centre

D17

Opportunity Area
The Mayor of London has proposed to designate large
areas in the borough of Kingston as an ‘Opportunity
Area’. This is currently being considered by independent
inspectors who will report to the Mayor later in the
year. The Mayor will then need to decide whether or
not he adopts the Opportunity Area for the borough.
If he does designate the Opportunity Area, we will
need to define the detailed boundary, as the Mayor
can only set out the broad location, not the specific
sites included. The boundary is shown on Figure 1:
Borough Context map.

What is an Opportunity Area?
London’s principal opportunities for
accommodating large scale development
to provide substantial numbers of new
employment and housing, each typically more
than 5,000 jobs and/or 2,500 homes, with a
mixed and intensive use of land and assisted by
good public transport accessibility.
(Draft New London Plan, 2017).

Q1. Do you have any comments on the Opportunity Area boundary shown?

Site assessments
In late 2017, we asked you what sites in the borough could be developed for different uses (called the Call for
Sites consultation). We’ve collected all the responses and put them in a document called ‘Site assessments’.
We have also included sites that were submitted to the Mayor of London as part of a London-wide study of
potential housing sites. This study, called Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment, was published
in 2017.
The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time and wants to hear your thoughts.
Once the consultation has closed, the council will review the feedback and carry out further studies to see
which sites could be included in the Local Plan, or other, documents as potential development sites.

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

11

D18
Local Plan: Early Engagement

How will our borough change over the next 22 years?
Planning permissions
We currently have about 1,000 homes being built
across the borough and are losing nearly 15,000 square
metres (sqm) of commercial Kingston
floorspace.
Norbiton

Berrylands

Surbiton
45

Malden Manor
47

2450

952

492

2,739

4

62

-110

-191

125

58

43

-226

131

-636

0

221
320

Chessington
SouthTotal homes and

commercial floorspace
under construction

14

0-249

27

250-499

35
0

193

266

-1,479Areas
Proposed Opportunity

4
0

Crossrail 2 route and station
Area subject to Policy H2 of
the draft London Plan (800m
22 town centers
buffers around
-738
and railway stations)

Total homes and
commercial floorspace
under construction
and not started
Number of homes
Total: 2,518

500-999

1,000-1,999
2,000 +
Commercial floorspace (sqm)

1:50,000

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

0.5

1

Not to scale

2 Kilometers

0-249
250-499

500-999

´´

1,000-1,999

´

2,000 +
Commercial floorspace (sqm)

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

Not to scale

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

12

-41

109

Borough boundary

Number of homes
Total: 1,100

0

79

-316

-1215

11

95
-97

Keys

7

215
-348

2876

North
105

8

-267

711

23,534

3

Chessington
-1441

24

107

853

-9579

-2063

-404

Worcester Park

Tolworth

-1751

34

28

527

355

3

New
Malden

13

-4868

11

We have another 1,500 homes which we have given
planning permission for, but work hasn’t started
to build them. A small number of those may never
be built, and some of them will have a different
permission agreed and built instead. There is also
23,000 sqm of commercial floorspace that has planning
permission, but has not yet started to be built.

D19

Large sites
Every year, planning applications come forward for sites
we weren’t aware of. These are called ‘windfall’ sites.
Kingston
If we add these to the sites already
being built
and sites
Norbiton
we have granted planning permission, we have about
5,000 homes in the pipeline.

Berrylands

Surbiton
85

We work closely with the Greater London Authority
to identify sites where we can expect housing to come
forward in the future. The number of homes estimated is
based on the existing London Plan density matrix and, on
some sites, includes other uses such as shops and other
businesses. Some of these sites are publicly available3
and some are confidential. If we include all of these sites,
weNew
get about an additional 15,700 homes by 2041.

Malden

Malden Manor
85

142

Tolworth

796

304
Chessington
North
223

23

Keys

605

277

Total homes
under construction, not
started and windfall sites

Number of homes
Total: 5,045
0-249

23

Crossrail 2 route and station
Area subject to Policy H2 of
the draft London Plan (800m
212town centers
buffers around
and railway stations)

250-499

´´

666

1,946
Proposed Opportunity
Areas

Chessington
South

136

225

691

Borough boundary
475

1,212

395

49
168

121

2,828

3,834

595

226

212

1,649

119

373

1,119

967

Worcester Park

Number of homes
Total: 15,736
0-249
250-499

500-999

500-999

1,000-1,999
2,000 +

Total homes
under construction, not
started and windfall sites
and SHLAA sites

1,000-1,999

´

2,000 +

1:50,000

Not
to scale
2 Kilometers

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

0

0.5

1

Not to scale

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).
3

The London Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA), 2017.
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

13

D20
Local Plan: Early Engagement

14

D21

Density
Density is the measure of how much development
is on a site or proposed for a site. For housing, it
is often measured as the number of homes per
hectare, but can also be measured by the number
of habitable rooms4; or bedspaces per hectare. If a
site has more than one type of use (e.g. flats above
shops) the non-housing use needs to be considered
in calculating density.
The current London Plan has a ‘Sustainable
residential quality density matrix’ (Table 3.2).
This is a tool to help understand when a proposed

development might be under- or over-development
of a site. It is a starting point, but is not intended to
be applied mechanistically and is not a requirement
which development must meet. Good design can, in
the right circumstances, make development above
the density matrix range acceptable. Constraints,
such as listed buildings, can make development
below the density matrix necessary. The density
ranges take character (either existing or proposed for
large sites or areas) and the index of public transport
accessibility level (PTAL) into account.

So, where are we now?
So, where are we now?
Development type

Approximate number of homes

Under construction

1,000

With permission but not started

1,500

‘Windfall’ sites

2,500

Large sites

10,700

Total

15,700

These sites are the basis for about half of the proposed
new London Plan housing target for the borough of
about 30,000 additional homes between 2019 and 2041.

People
Going forward, if we are to double housing
delivery toin
meet the draft London Plan target, we will need to find
4

approximately 15,000 more homes to add to those
already in the pipeline and on the large sites we have
already identified. We put forward two ideas as to
how this might be achieved: widespread growth
Kingston
or concentrated growth.

Habitable rooms are any room for sleeping, cooking, living or eating;
such as bedrooms, living rooms, dining rooms, and larger kitchens
etc. It does not include bathrooms or toilets, service rooms,
corridors, laundries, hallways, utility rooms
or similar spaces.

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan
0
10
20

30

40

50

60

70

15

D22
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Scenario 1: Widespread growth

The Mayor expects half of our annual
housing target of 1,364 per year to
come from ‘small sites’ (625). Small sites
development can come from extending
and redeveloping existing homes to
make a larger number of new homes in
areas in walking distance of stations or
Kingston
town centres.
This could be through infill (building
between properties) and back
garden development, extensions and
conversions of larger houses into flats
to bring forward new homes. To provide
enough homes to meet our target, up to
a quarter of the existing homes in these
areas would need to be converted
or
Surbiton
intensified by 2041.

Norbiton

Berrylands

Malden Manor

Our policies would need to be very
clear that we encourage people to
Tolworth
convert their homes and properties
into flats. This scenario proposes
development spread widely across the
borough. Development would need
to make the most of every
site, which
Chessington
North centre
would see high densities in town
locations and around transport hubs to
help achieve the housing need.

Worcester Park

´

0

0

0.5

1

0.5

1

Town centre

Borough boundary

Train station (potential future
Crossrail 2 route)
Proposed Opportunity Areas
Area within 800m buffers
Crossrail 2 route and station
around town centres and
Area subject to Policy H2train
of stations (Policy H2 of
the
the draft London Plan (800mdraft new London Plan)
buffers around town centers
and railway stations)

of our suburban areas. It also relies
on many private homeowners
choosing to have their homes
redeveloped to provide more
homes. This would mean that
the Local Plan would need to
consider how to develop policies
to manage such intensification.

1:50,000

Borough boundary

Keys

Chessington
This option would change many
South

´

New
Malden

Not to scale
2 Kilometers

2 Kilometers
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).
16

D23

Small site development examples

Gap House, Westminster

Portland House, Richmond

Nick Kane

Peckham House, Southwark

Waters Square, Kingston

Surbiton Hill Road, Surbiton

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

17

D24
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Scenario 2: Concentrated growth

This scenario looks at how more
development could come forward
particularly within the new
Opportunity Area, and within the
most accessible locations, such as near
railway stations, transport hubs and
town centres. This could be supported
by the arrival of Crossrail 2. Kingston

Kingston
Norbiton

New
Malden

Norbiton

Buildings in these locations would be
at very high densities and include a
mix of uses. People will be able to live
New
in central locations with conveniently
placed shops, transport and services.
Berrylands Malden
Building at these densities would
Surbiton
significantly change the look and
feel of these parts of the borough.
Surbiton
Malden Manor
However, there would be less
immediate change in areas with a
more residential character compared
Tolworth
to the widespread growth scenario. Tolworth

Berrylands

Malden Manor
Worcester Park

Worcester Park

Chessington
North

Chessington
North

Borough boundary

Keys

Potential Opportunity Area

ChessingtonBorough boundary

Chessington
South

0

1:50,000

0.5

1

Town centre
Proposed Opportunity Areas
Train station (potential future
Crossrail 2 route)
Crossrail 2 route and station

Area subject to Policy H2 of
the draft London Plan (800m
buffers around town centers
and railway stations)

´

´
0

South

Not to scale
0.5

1

2 Kilometers

2 Kilometers
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).
18

D25

Development examples

Claredale Street, Mansford Estate, Tower Hamlets
Tim Crocker

LOW DENSITY
Adelaide Wharf, Hackney
Tim Soar

Liddell Road, Camden
Maccreanor Lavington

MEDIUM DENSITY

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

HIGH DENSITY

19

D26
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Q2. What is your vision for the
future of the borough of Kingston,
including how and where we should
build a significant increase in the
number of homes, supported by jobs
and infrastructure?
Do you prefer either of the scenarios set out,
a mix of both, or an alternative?

I prefer:
Mainly scenario 1 (Widespread growth)
Mainly scenario 2 (Concentrated growth)
A mix of both scenarios
Something else
Please share your thoughts or expand on your ideas:

20

D27

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

21

D28
Local Plan: Early Engagement

3.

Should we also think about ...

The Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land
The protection of our green spaces, including the Green
Belt and Metropolitan Open Land (MOL), is a priority.
We therefore need to try our best to accommodate all of
our housing need within built up areas. If this is not
possible, an option may be to build on parts of the Green
Belt and MOL. This could see significant housing delivery
in these areas, which would enable less dense development
elsewhere in the borough, and would be supported
by appropriate infrastructure, including potential new
public parks.
The Opportunity Area includes protected land within parts
of the MOL in the Hogsmill Valley and Tolworth areas, and
parts of the Green Belt in Chessington. Regardless of the
designation of an Opportunity Area by the London Plan, we
would not expect sites in these locations to be developed
unless housing need cannot be met in any other way.

The fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by
keeping land permanently open; the
essential characteristics of Green
Belts are their openness and their
permanence. (National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF))
Metropolitan Open Land: Extensive
areas of land bounded by urban
development around London that
fulfils a similar function to Green Belt
and is protected from inappropriate
development by land-use planning
policies. (GLA London Plan, 2017)

Q3. If we cannot deliver our housing
target in another way, should we consider
development in the Green Belt and/or
Metropolitan Open Land (MOL)?
Green Belt
Yes
No
MOL
Yes
No
If yes, please explain where in the borough could be considered for future
development, and what this development should be like:

22

D29

Kingston

Norbiton

Kingston

Norbiton

New
Malden

Berrylands

Surbiton

Berrylands

New
Malden

Malden Manor

Surbiton

Tolworth

Malden Manor

Worcester Park

Tolworth
Chessington
North
Chessington
North

Worcester Park

Borough boundary

Keys

Chessington
South

Railway lines
Railway station
Borough
boundary
Town
centre
Proposed
Opportunity Areas
Green
Belt

Chessington
South

Metropolitan
Open
Land
Crossrail
2 route
and station

´´

Area subject to Policy H2 of
the draft London Plan (800m
buffers around town centers
and railway stations)

Not to scale

1:50,000

0

0.5

1

2 Kilometers

1:50,000

and Metropolitan Open Land in the borough
0Figure
0.5 2: 1Green Belt
2 Kilometers
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

23

D30
Local Plan: Early Engagement

4.

Infrastructure

Good infrastructure5 in the right place, and at
the right time, is essential to meeting the future
needs of Kingston’s residents, businesses and
visitors. This needs effective planning; efficient
and appropriate use of land and facilities; and
working with key partners such as Transport for
London, and utilities providers such as Thames
Water, and developers.

24

Most new development has to pay a levy to the
council (the Community Infrastructure Levy)
and sometimes other payments for works and/
or facilities to help provide the infrastructure
needed to support the new development.
Infrastructure can also be paid for by other
funding such as private investment, government
or Mayoral grants, charities, crowd-sourcing
or council funding or borrowing.

D31

Q4. What do you feel are the key pressures that need to be addressed to make
development acceptable? Please choose up to seven, with 1 being most important
and 7 the least important.
1-7
Traffic
Train overcrowding
GP accessibility
Dentists accessibility
Sufficient school places
Childcare places
More parks and/or playgrounds
More leisure centres
Access to community facilities such as libraries, museums, places of worship or community halls
Access to council services
Visible policing
More youth provision
Facilities for older people
Other:

Q5. How can we ensure that the right infrastructure is in place?

5

The term infrastructure covers a broad range of measures including buildings, transport, utilities 		
(e.g. energy and water) and green/environmental infrastructure (e.g. open space).
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

25

D32
Local Plan: Early Engagement

5.

Design

Good design and good planning are intrinsically linked. High quality design and an ability to adapt to change
are important to achieve successful developments. This ensures development is not only attractive, but also
functional and efficient; enhancing neighbourhoods and people’s lives. Many different considerations are taken
into account to achieve good design:

durable travel safe
secure management street
interest
quality
liveliness
context
accessible
efficient
detail
deliveries
lifespan
water
high inclusive
land level
servicing
daylight
materials
flexible
inviting
flooding
spaces
function
environment
sunlight
connected
privacy
heritage comfortable
green pollution
greening amenity

optimise
sustainable
active localfrontages

attractive

character

responsive
space

Housing density
The draft new London Plan states that sites delivering new homes must show that they optimise housing
density. Decisions about whether the density of development is suitable will be design-led, and will need to
consider how the development integrates with the existing area; its connectivity and accessibility by walking,
cycling and public transport; and the ability of infrastructure around the site to meet increased demand
(e.g. schools, GP surgeries, etc).

Q6. How can we increase densities and the use of land to provide more homes and
jobs? Can you give any examples of where this has been done well, in the borough
of Kingston or in other locations?

26

D33

Tall buildings
At almost 81 metres tall, Tolworth Tower is the tallest building in the borough. There are also tall buildings
in New Malden, Kingston town centre and on the Cambridge Road Estate.

The Draft New London Plan defines tall buildings as:
“Generally those that are substantially taller
than their surroundings and cause a significant
change to the skyline. In large areas of
extensive change, such as Opportunity Areas,
definitions of tall buildings should relate to the
evolving context. For the purpose of assessing
applications referable to the Mayor, a tall building

is a development that meets one or more of the
following descriptions:
• it falls within the Thames Policy Area and is
more than 25m in height
• it is more than 30m in height elsewhere in London”
(paragraph 3.8.2)

Q7. Is there a role for tall buildings in the borough? If so, what locations and
heights might be suitable, and what would be most important in terms of their
design or use? If you would like a different definition of tall buildings for the
borough, please also tell us:

Design codes
The draft new London Plan states that masterplans and design
codes⁶ can be used to help bring forward development and ensure it delivers
high quality design, including the spaces and places between buildings, streets and
open spaces. We could use design codes to make sure new development is appropriate for
the local area, or to provide consistency in how we intensify areas which will see a lot of change.

Q8. Do you think the council should create design codes and masterplans?
If so, what aspects and/or locations should they focus on?

6

Design code: A set of illustrated design requirements that provide specific, detailed parameters for the physical development of 		
a site or area. The graphic and written components of the code should build upon a design vision, such as a masterplan or other
design and development framework for a site or area. (National Planning Policy Framework, 2019)
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

27

D34
Local Plan: Early Engagement

6.

Housing

We need to provide a range of homes to meet different needs and incomes. Good quality homes contribute
to people’s health and wellbeing, reduce energy bills and meet people’s needs over their lifetime.

Q9. What is most important for homes across the borough? Please choose up to
seven, starting with 1 being most important and 7 being the least important of
those you choose.
1-7
Being able to buy
Being able to secure good rental terms (length of lease and cost)
Being able to afford (costs less than homes for sale/rent through estate agents)
Close to a station or good bus routes
Close to shops, restaurants and other leisure and community services
Close to good schools
Close to parks, open spaces and natural spaces
Cycle parking
Car parking
Access to outdoor space or a garden
Being able to garden
Storage, inside and outside
Light and airy, but not overheated
Low energy bills
Privacy
Good environmental quality e.g noise, air quality
Safety and security
Places to meet and get to know neighbours
Inclusive design - ensuring accessibility for all
The feel of the area
(please provide details):
The architecture of the building
(please provide details):
Other:

28

D35

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

29

D36
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Affordable housing
Affordable housing is available to households whose needs are not met by the private market.
The Mayor of London has set a strategic affordable housing target of 50%. These affordable homes
can be delivered in three ways to achieve the overall target:
1. schemes solely developed for affordable housing or with very high levels of affordable housing, normally built
by housing associations,
2. estate regeneration, and similar development of public land, and
3. affordable housing delivered by developers alongside market housing, secured by planning agreements.
The Local Plan can set the level (%) of affordable housing that developers should deliver on individual sites.
However, we have to be mindful of the Mayor’s overall 50% strategic target across London.
Affordable housing falls into two broad categories:
• Affordable housing for rent helps households on the lowest 25% of incomes in the borough who are on our
housing register. Currently, affordable rents that are set at 80% of local market rents are unaffordable to many
households on the lowest 25% of incomes in the borough. Both London Affordable Rent and social rents are
set at levels significantly below 80% to help these households.
• Intermediate housing helps households earning between £18,100 and £90,0007 a year into home ownership.
We have some choice about the type of affordable housing that we require from housing developments,
based on need. The London Plan requires:
• 30% of the affordable homes secured on development sites to be affordable housing for rent.
• 30% of the affordable homes secured on development sites to be intermediate housing.
• We can choose what sort of affordable housing the other 40% of affordable homes can be.

Affordable housing options
There are different types of affordable housing
available, and more options might be developed
in the future. The current options are:

• Affordable Rent - is available to people who are on
our housing register. The rent is no more than 80%
of local market rent, including service charge.

•
• London Affordable Rent - is available to people
who are on our housing register. The rents are set
annually by the Mayor of London and are closer to
rents for council flats and houses. Currently, the
rent for a one bed property is £150 per week, £159
•
for a two bed, and £168 for a three bed.

London Living Rent - housing for people who
want to own their own home and who earn up to
£60,000 per year 8. For example, currently rents for
New Malden are £864 per month for a one bed,
£960 for a two bed and £1,056 for a three bed.
Shared Ownership - housing for people who want to
own their own home and who earn up to £90,000 per
year 9. Shared Ownership offers people the chance to
buy a share of their home (between 25% and 75% of
the value) and pay rent on the remaining share.

• Social Rent - is normally only available for councilowned and some housing association-owned
homes. Rents are set by national guidance.
Currently, average council rents are £102 per week
• Discount Market Sale - is sold at a discount of at
for a one bed, £115 for a two bed and £131 per week
least 20% below local market value. It is available to
for a three bed.
people who cannot buy a home on the open market.
30

D37

Q10. How do you think we could deliver more affordable homes?

Q11. Which type of affordable housing do you think the council should prioritise, and
why? Please tick all that apply:
London Affordable Rent
Social Rent
Affordable Rent
London Living Rent
Shared Ownership
Discount Market Sale
Please tell us why:

Q12. What type of housing should the council be seeking for the other 40% of
affordable homes which are not set out by the Mayor of London?

Q13. Are there any types of affordable housing you think the council should not
be encouraging, and why?

Earnings thresholds are published in the Mayor of London’s 2016 Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)
Income threshold is reviewed annually in the Mayor of London’s Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) - See paragraph 3.61 of AMR 13
9
Income threshold is reviewed annually in the Mayor of London’s Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) - See paragraph 3.62 of AMR 13
7

8

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

31

D38
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Other types of housing
Specialist older persons housing
Specialist older persons housing falls into two categories:
• Self-contained housing such as sheltered housing and extra care accommodation.
• Residential care and nursing care homes for those who can no longer live independently, and usually
comprises a bedroom with ensuite facilities and shared communal areas for socialising and dining.

The Mayor of London estimates that by 2029 the number of people over 65 years old in London will have
increased by 37%, and those over 75 years will increase by 42%.

People in the borough of Kingston
In the borough of Kingston, households over 65 years are expected to increase by 46%, and those of 75
years by 59% in the period to 2030.

32

D39

So, where are we now?

Development type

Approximate number of homes

Under construction

1,000

With permission but not started

1,500

‘Windfall’ sites

2,500

Large sites

10,700

Total

15,700

People in Kingston
Ageing population profile for
the borough of Kingston 20142030 (Source: Figure 9.1 Kingston
and North East Surrey Strategic
Housing Market Assessment 2016)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Percentage increase
65 years and over

75 years and over

85 years and over

The Mayor of London sets a target to provide 105 sheltered or extra care homes per year10 in the borough to
ensure we meet the needs of our older residents.

Sheltered accommodation
(also referred and
to as jobs
supported housing) is self-contained accommodation
Local businesses
specifically designed and managed for older people (minimum age of 55 years) who require no or a low level
of support. Schemes normally include additional communal facilities such as a residents’ lounge and a scheme
manager,
warden
35,000
peopleor personal alarm/telecare system.
45,000 people
KINGSTON
commute in for
commute out for
BOROUGH
Extrawork
careevery
accommodation
(also
referred to as assisted
living,
day
work
everyclose
day care, or continuing care housing) is

self-contained residential accommodation and associated facilities, designed and managed to meet the needs
and aspirations of older people, and which provides 24-hour access to emergency support. A range of facilities
are normally available such as a residents’ lounge, laundry room, a restaurant or meal provision facilities,
classes, and a base for health care workers. Domiciliary care (supporting people to live independently in their
own homes) will be available to varying levels, either as part of the accommodation package or as additional
services which can be purchased if required.
10

Draft New London Plan Table 4.4 - Annual borough benchmarks for specialist older persons housing (Page 189)
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

33

D40
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Q14. Have you got any suggestions for how we can help meet the housing needs of
older people in the borough?

Purpose-built student housing
The Mayor of London is very positive about the contribution made to London’s economy and labour market by
higher educational institutions, and estimates that London requires 3,500 new purpose-built student bedrooms
per year. Student accommodation is an important element of our borough’s housing mix. Research11 showed that
in 2016 there were 16,000 students living in the borough of Kingston. Students, whether from Kingston University
or another higher education institution, support Kingston’s local economy. About 1,500 new student bedrooms
were built in the borough in the last ten years, but there are no current applications in the pipeline.

Q15. What role can the borough play in contributing towards meeting London’s
student accommodation need?

Self-build housing
As a council, we have a duty to keep a register of people who wish to acquire land to bring forward self-build
housing projects. As part of this, we are required to identify plots of land to meet the needs of the people
on the self-build housing register.

Q16. Have you got any suggestions for how we can help meet the needs of people
on the self-build register?

11

Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) March 2016 - See Chapter 9. www.kingston.gov.uk/downloads/file/763/strategic_		
housing_market_assessment . Students are defined as those in full time education aged 16 or older, and will include older school
and college students as well as university students.
34

Total

15,700

D41

People in Kingston

7.

Businesses and jobs

Local businesses and jobs
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

We need to think about how we can provide anPercentage
environment
where we create jobs and opportunities for
increase
those who want to work in the borough, and spaces for the businesses that want to locate here. More people
75 years
years and
85We
yearswant
and over
commute out of the 65
borough
toover
work than commute
intoand
theover
borough for work.
to encourage more
businesses and jobs to be created in the borough so that more residents have the opportunity to work here.

Local businesses and jobs

35,000 people
commute in for
work every day

KINGSTON
BOROUGH

45,000 people
commute out for
work every day

Two of the main drivers of commuting are access to job opportunities and the potential to earn higher
salaries elsewhere. At £701.90, weekly gross median earnings are very high in the borough of Kingston
(the national average is £532.60). However, median workplace earnings, at £557.30 a week, are far lower than
resident earnings, although above the national average. This suggests that out-commuting workers are
benefiting from higher pay working elsewhere.

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

35

D42
Local Plan: Early Engagement

There are about 80,000 jobs in the borough and most are in the following areas of work:
• Financial and other business services
• Public administration, education and health
• Wholesale and retail

36

D43

17.5%
Wholesale
and retail

28.7%
Public administration,
Types of employment in the borough
education and health

2.1%

Manufacturing

1.8%

2.8%

Transport
and storage

Construction

4.2%

Information
and communication

0.1%

1%

Motor trades

Primary sector
and utilities

5.9%

29.6%
Financial and
other business
services

Accomodation
and food

6.3%
Arts, entertainment,
recreation and other

17.5%
Wholesale
and retail

28.7%
Public administration,
education and health

Most jobs in the borough are in small businesses, with very few
jobs in larger businesses that employ more than 50 people. We need to
make sure there are opportunities and the right types of work spaces
for small businesses to start up and grow, for example open-plan offices
with touch-down desks and modern technology available.

Q17. How can we best provide a range of workspace types to support different
sized businesses in the borough?

Q18. Are there any types of workspace we should be targeting?

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

37

D44
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Protected employment locations
These are the key locations in the borough
where certain land uses provide jobs including retail, office, industrial, storage
and distribution uses, and leisure facilities.
These areas have stronger protection
through the London Plan and our
current local planning policies.
Kingston
Strategic Industrial Locations are
London’s main areas of land for industrial,
logistics and related uses. They are given
strategic protection because they are
critical to the effective functioning of
London’s economy.

Norbiton

Kingston
Norbiton

Berrylands

Locally Significant Industrial Sites
Surbiton
are locations that have particular
local importance for industrial and
related functions.

´

1:50,000

New
Malden
Berrylands

Malden Manor

Surbiton

Malden Manor

Worcester Park

Our town centres provide a range of Tolworth
shops, services and other uses, where
people work and spend their free time.
Kingston town centre is the third best
performing retail destination
in London
Chessington
(based on retail expenditure),
attracting
North
the most visitors in the borough12.
However, significant changes in how
people shop, especially internet
Chessington
South
shopping, and competition from
other retail destinations means
that we need to think about
how Kingston town centre,
our district town centres
(New Malden, Surbiton and
Tolworth) and smaller local
shopping parades should adapt,
so they continue to be successful
places that people want to visit.

New
Malden

Worcester Park

Tolworth

Keys

Chessington
North

Railway lines

Borough boundary
Proposed Opportunity Areas

Chessington
South

Kingston town centre
District centres

Area subject to Policy H2 of
the draft London Plan (800m
buffers around town centers
and railway stations)

Locally Significant Industrial Site

´

Not to scale

0.5 3: 1The borough’s
2 Kilometers
Figure
protected
locations
0
0.5employment
1
2 Kilometers
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).

Based on market size and retail expenditure. 2017 Vitality Rankings. Harper Dennis Hobbs, 2017.
http://hdh.co.uk/uploads/2017/06/HDH-Vitality-Index-June-2017.pdf
38

Key road network

Crossrail 2 route and station

0

12

Railway station

Strategic Industrial Land
Borough boundary

D45

Q19. Do you think we should make any changes to the locations protected
for employment or town centres, such as changes to boundaries or deletion
of locations? Are there any other key locations where we should protect
employment uses?

Currently, when sites in these protected areas are redeveloped, they must re-provide the employment
floorspace, or enough space for the same number of jobs to be on site. This means that the employment
use can sometimes be provided on part of the site, and the rest used for housing, or other uses. However,
this means that we are not increasing the total amount of space available for employment and businesses.
Over the last six years13, 40,000sqm of employment floorspace has been lost in the borough.

Should we change this approach? Should we try and increase the amount of employment
floorspace in our protected areas? There are a range of different approaches which could
be used in different areas:
1. Only allowing new employment uses in protected areas, even when they redevelop.
2. Making sure all sites in these areas are a mix of uses. For example, half of all developments
are for employment, and half are for housing.
3. Reprovide the existing employment floorspace, but the rest can be other uses such as housing.
4. Let the employment uses change to other uses, such as housing.
We recognise that employment, shopping and leisure habits are changing rapidly
and the efficient use of building space is important to help keep our town centres
and local centres competitive and vibrant. Having a more flexible approach to
how building spaces are used could allow quicker responses to these changes.

Q20. Should we allow a flexible range of land uses
in new developments in our town centres and local
centres to make it easier to convert spaces?
If so, which types of land uses should we
include in this range of flexible uses?

13

Covering the 2012/13 to 2017/18 monitoring
years (inclusive).
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

D46
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Q21. What approach would you suggest for the following protected areas?
Suggested approach
Strategic Industrial Locations
Barwell Business Park (Chessington)
Chessington Industrial Estate (Tolworth)
Suggested approach
Local Industrial Locations
Canbury Park
Fairfield Trade Park/Kingsmill Business Park/Villiers
Road Waste Transfer Facility
St. George’s Industrial Estate
London Road (Nos. 117-147 and 100-122)
Cambridge Road/Hampden Road
St. John’s Industrial Area
Silverglade Business Park
Red Lion Road
Suggested approach
Town centres
Kingston
Tolworth
Surbiton
New Malden
Local centres and shopping parades (state any you have in mind)

Q22. Do you think any of the protected areas should support different types of uses,
such as a wider range of commercial activity and businesses or housing?

40

D47

There are also many employment uses (restaurants, shops, industrial uses, hotels) outside these
protected areas.

Q23. Should we also protect specific land uses that provide employment outside of
the protected employment locations? If so, which land uses should we protect?

Attracting visitors to our borough
Our heritage and public spaces are great assets for our town centres and more broadly across the borough. They create
an environment that attracts visitors and provide spaces for markets, cultural activities and other types of events.
The borough of Kingston also has a range of visitor accommodation, although this sector has been disrupted by
the emergence of informal visitor letting such as Airbnb.

Q24. Should we do more to protect and encourage visitor accommodation and
attractions? If so, which types should we protect, or encourage, and where?
Hotels and other permanent visitor accommodation, such as bed and breakfasts
Leisure facilities
Museums
Retail
Pubs/music venues
Other tourist attractions, please specify:

Q25. How can we make better use of our public spaces and assets to
attract visitors?

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

41

D48
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Kingston town centre

Kingston
Station

John Lewis

Bentall
Centre
Kingston
Station

All Saints
Church

John Lewis

Bentall
Centre

All Saints
Church

Fairfield Recreation
Ground

Guildhall

Fairfield Recreation
Ground

Guildhall

Railway line

Railway line

KingstonKingston
town centre
town centre
Shopping
Primary Primary
Shopping
Area Area
Waterways
Waterways

Not to scale

Figure 4: The primary shopping area within Kingston town centre
42

Borough boundary

Borough boundary

D49

Most of the units in Kingston town centre’s primary shopping area are used as shops, but there are other
uses, such as cafes and restaurants. Most of the units outside this area are not used as shops. We need to
think about whether the extent of the primary shopping area is still appropriate and what other types of
uses we should support in Kingston town centre so it continues to be successful and attract visitors.

The types of uses within Kingston
7%
town centre’s primary shopping
area
Vacant units
10%

7%

Other uses

Vacant units

10%
Other uses

15%
A3 (cafes and
restaurants)

15%

63%

A3 (cafes and
restaurants)

5%

A1 (shops)

A2 (financial and
professional services)

63%

5%

A1 (shops)

A2 (financial and
professional services)

The types of uses within
Kingston town centre’s primary shopping area

The types of uses in Kingston
town centre outside of the
The types of uses within
Kingston town centre’s primary shopping area
primary shopping area
13%
Vacant units

25%
A1 (shops)

13%
Vacant units

25%
A1 (shops)

31%

10%

Other uses

A2 (financial and
professional services)

31%

10%

Other uses

A2 (financial and
professional services)

21%
A3 (cafes and
restaurants)

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

21% The types of uses in Kingston town centre

A3 (cafes and outside of the primary shopping area
restaurants)

The types of uses in Kingston town centre

43

D50
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Q26. What should the focus be to ensure the future success of Kingston
town centre?

Kingston town centre is our main area of evening and night-time activity. In the future, town centres will
need to offer more than shops to remain successful, with a good food and beverage, cultural and leisure offer.
With more internet shopping, the only sector in town centres that is growing is evening uses: restaurants,
pubs and leisure uses.

Q27. Should we promote more activity in our town centres in the evenings or
night-time? If so, how can we do this?
Evening

44

Night time (from 9pm onwards)

D51

District town centres
The other main town centres in the borough are New Malden, Surbiton and Tolworth. In recent years
there have become fewer shops in these locations. These town centres are important for our residents
and have their own unique identity, so we need to think about what they will be like in the future.

Q28. What should the focus be to ensure the future
success of New Malden, Surbiton and Tolworth?

In addition to these main town centres, we have a number of local centres, shopping parades
and isolated shops.

Q29. Do you have any suggestions for the future of any of our
local centres or shopping parades?

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

45

D52
Local Plan: Early Engagement

8.

Transport

A good transport offer is
crucial if the borough is to
meet the needs of current
and future residents and
businesses. Improvements
to the transport network
will be essential to support Kingston
new housing and other
development. A number of
infrastructure improvement
projects have been identified,
as shown in Figure 5.

Kingston
Norbiton

New
Malden

Norbiton

Berrylands

Surbiton Surbiton

New
Berrylands
Malden

Malden Manor

Malden Manor
Worcester Park

Tolworth

Chessington
North

Chessington
South

Tolworth

Worcester Park

Keys

Chessington
North
Chessington
South

Borough boundary

Railway lines
Extension to existing rail
line and new Crossrail 2 station

Proposed Opportunity Areas

Key road network

Crossrail 2 route and station
Proposed junction improvements
Area subject to Policy Go
H2Cycle
of routes
the draft London Plan Potential
(800m relief road
buffers around town centers
Potential Tolworth Deck
and railway stations)

´

Town centres

Strategic Industrial Land and
Locally Significant Industrial Sites

Not to scale

1:50,000

Figure
0.5 5: 1Transport
2 improvements
Kilometers

0

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. The Royal Borough of Kingston. Licence No. 100019285 (2019).
46

Borough boundary

D53

Q30. What are your thoughts on any of these major infrastructure projects?
Are there any other projects we should consider?

Transport choice and health
By 2041, the Mayor of London wants 80% of all trips in London to be made on foot, by cycle, or using public
transport14. However, many of our streets are dominated by cars. This contributes to climate change, causes
congestion, contributes to a number of health problems (linked to inactivity, road traffic accidents, poor air
quality and noise and related impacts) and creates a poor environment for walking and cycling.

Q31. How can we encourage more people to walk, cycle and use public transport?

Q32. What can we do to help reduce the problems of congestion?

Parking
Travel demand will increase as our population grows. Parking controls are very effective tools in managing
traffic levels and congestion. Parking availability influences car use and ownership, and encourages use of
alternative forms of transport and shared car facilities such as car clubs. More widely, levels of car ownership
are dropping as fewer young people choose to own their own car.
The Draft New London Plan states that:
• new housing and retail development in Kingston town centre and parts of Surbiton should be car free.
• developments elsewhere in the borough should be designed with minimal parking accounting for public
transport availability, with maximum car parking space limits for sites within the borough of Kingston’s
Opportunity Area (if agreed in the new London Plan) and depending on public transport accessibility.

14

Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2018) www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-transport-strategy-2018.pdf
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

47

D54
Local Plan: Early Engagement

Q33. How else can parking controls be used to address transport issues in
the borough?

New development and deliveries
Major new development will need to make suitable arrangements for deliveries, accounting for changing shopping
habits and new trends in transport and bringing more housing into town centres (e.g. more online purchases etc).

Q34. When planning new developments, what steps can be taken
to reduce the number and impact of trips made by delivery
vehicles in the borough?

48

D55

Mobility and accessibility
Mobility and accessibility are becoming increasingly important issues, for example, the borough has an ageing
population with specific needs. Our streets and public transport networks should enable those who are less
mobile to travel more easily and independently.

Q35. How can we improve mobility and accessibility on our streets and
transport networks, particularly for those who are less mobile?

New transport options
Londoners’ travel habits are changing - recent years have seen major technological developments, including the
rapid uptake of new transport options. New technology could help provide alternative transport options in the
borough of Kingston, for example bicycle hire schemes, electric/hydrogen vehicle refueling points, car clubs,
alternative vehicle hire/ride sharing schemes and alternative vehicle hire/ride sharing schemes.

Q36. Is there any new technology we should support (or manage) to
give people more transport options and flexibility for
their journeys?

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

49

D56
Local Plan: Early Engagement

9.

Is there anything else....

If there is anything you think we should cover that we haven’t considered, please let us know.

Q37. What are your main priorities that you feel the Local Plan
must deal with?

Q38. Is there anything else that you feel the Local Plan should include?

Q39. Is there anything else that you would like to tell us?

50

D57

10.

How to get involved

This is the first stage of public consultation on the Local Plan. The consultation is being run from early
May to the end of July 2019. It is your chance to get involved and let us know your thoughts on the big
questions being asked.
To find out more about the Local Plan, and to get regular updates on planning policy, visit
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan and add your contact details to our Strategic Planning database,
or provide your details below and we'll add you to the database.

Name:
Organisation (if applicable):
Address:

Email address:
How to respond
Have your say online by visiting www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan or send your
feedback to us by email: localplan@kingston.gov.uk. You can post your comments to us:
Strategic Planning Team, The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, Guildhall 2,
High Street, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1EU
Printed copies of these consultation documents are available in libraries across the borough
and also in the Information and Advice Centre at Guildhall 2. The team at the Information
and Advice Centre can help show you where to complete the consultation online.
If you have any comments, questions, or simply need help with your representation,
you can email the Strategic Planning Team at localplan@kingston.gov.uk or phone us
on 020 8547 5002.

Accessibility of document
If you have difficulties with the consultation material, please email
localplan@kingston.gov.uk or phone us on 020 8547 5002.
An audio summary of the Local Plan Early Engagement document is also available online:
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

51

D58

The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Strategic Planning Team
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames KT1 1EU
T: 020 8547 5002

www.kingston.gov.uk

D59

Local Plan

Site Assessments
Early Engagement (Regulation 18) May 2019
www.kingston.gov.uk/newlocalplan

D60
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Contents
1. Introduction

2

2. What you need to know

3

3. Kingston Town Neighbourhood sites

5

4. Maldens and Coombe Neighbourhood sites

122

5. South of the Borough Neighbourhood sites

186

6. Surbiton Neighbourhood sites

239

1

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

2/316

D61
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

1. Introduction
We have an opportunity to identify sites across the borough to help us meet our housing
need, as part of the Local Plan Early Engagement consultation. Although we have housing
targets, we must also identify potential locations for other uses, like shops, offices or
community facilities. This document looks at a range of possible sites that may be needed
for all types of development within the borough over the next 20+ years.
National policy states that we should allocate sites in our Local Plan to promote development
and the flexible use of land. All sites allocated must be deliverable within the plan period
(2019-2041).
We ran a Call for Sites consultation from September to December 2017, asking everyone to
submit any sites to the council which they thought might be suitable for future development.
A range of sites were submitted by developers, landowners and the local community with
suggestions for their future potential uses. Now is your chance to share your thoughts on
these sites.
On the following pages, we present all the sites that were submitted to the council through
the Call for Sites process, together with sites that were submitted to the Mayor of London as
part of the London-wide Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA), which
was published in 2017. By adding the SHLAA sites to ours, it gives us more site options to
look at.
When the Local Plan is adopted any ‘Site Allocations’ will broadly identify the types of
development that will be allowed on a specific site.

QSA1: Do you have any views on any of the sites in this document?
Please state which site(s) you are commenting on using the site reference
……………………………………………………………………………………………………....
….…………………………………………………………………………………………………......
.......……………………………………………………………………………………………………
....….…………………………………………………………………………………………………..
..…….………………………………………………………………………………………………....
.............………………………………………………………………………………………………
……....….……………………………………………………………………………………………
……....…….…………………………………………………………………………………………
……..................………………………………………………………………………………………
……………........…………………………..................……………………………………………
………………………………………………………........…………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………

2

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

3/316

D62
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

2.

What you need to know

Sites within this document have been submitted either through our ‘Call for Sites’
consultation or suggested as part of the 2017 London Strategic Housing Land Availability
Study (SHLAA) to the Greater London Authority.

The council does not have a view on any of these sites and wants to hear your
views.
Once the consultation has closed, the council will review the feedback and complete any
other assessments or discussions needed. Where appropriate, sites will then be proposed in
the draft new Local Plan for further consultation.
All suggested sites have been included so that you can have your say on them before any
decisions are made. It may be that many of these proposals are not appropriate and are not
taken forward through the Local Plan process.
The description of some sites within this document may not be correct - we have used the
exact responses from the Call for Sites consultation. This means that some of the sites do
not represent the statutory planning land use.
Some sites have more than one proposal. The number of homes described is the total
number (gross, not net) - if there are already homes on the site, it is assumed these will be
lost to build the new housing. These figures are just a suggestion for the public to comment
on.

Other information provided by the council
We have added some information to the bottom of each suggested site
Housing
calculation:

This is based on the London Plan density matrix, which can be found
in Table 3.2 of the current London Plan1. The matrix calculates a
housing estimate for the site based on character and Public Transport
Accessibility Levels.
Character
The “Character” referred to is based on how close the site is to one of
the four main town centres in the borough. This is based on the
character settings used in the 2017 London SHLAA.
● Sites within 1km of Kingston Metropolitan Town Centre are
classified as ‘Central’;
● Sites outside of this area, but within 1km of the borough’s three
District Centres (New Malden, Tolworth and Surbiton) are
classified as ‘Urban’;
● All sites outside of these areas classified as ‘Suburban’.

1

See: https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/current-london-plan

3

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

4/316

D63
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

If you disagree with the character included in the assessment, please
include this in your comments.
Public Transport Accessibility Levels (PTAL)
PTAL is a scale which ranges from 1 (poor public transport services) to
6 (excellent public transport connections and services). The figures
included here are based on 2015 and don’t include potential transport
improvements in the future.
Strategic
constraints

Some sites may not conform with existing planning policy constraints.
In this section we set out whether the site is in:
● Green Belt
● Metropolitan Open Land
● A listed building, or
● A Strategic Industrial Location.

Site area (in
hectares)

Site areas are shown in hectares, with 1 hectare being 10,000 square
metres.

Map

The site boundary maps are not shown to scale.
The site boundary is shown in red and the borough boundary is shown
in blue.

Excluded sites
A small number of sites were excluded. The sites are described below together with the
reason for exclusion, except where the site was excluded for confidentiality reasons. If you
would like to comment on these sites, please do so, quoting the address.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Malden Road, KT4 Disused public toilets adjoining Harvester car park - No site plan
submitted.
Cap in Hand, Ace Roundabout, Hook - No site plan submitted.
Surbiton Hill Garage, The Avenue, Surbiton KT5 8JW - Site under construction.
The Fountain Public House, 120 Malden Road, New Malden, KT3 6DD - Planning
permission granted for 45 homes (Planning reference: 17/15272/FUL).
14A Park Road, Kingston, KT2 6BG - Planning permission granted for 9 homes
(Planning reference: 17/12997/FUL).
The Barge Dock, Down Hall Road, Kingston, KT1 1PS - Planning permission granted
for 9 homes (Planning reference: 18/12421/FUL).
29 Lovelace Road - Planning application currently under consideration. (Planning
reference: 18/16554/FUL)
Land to the rear of Riverdene Court, Grove Road KT6 4BX - Adjacent site sold for
development and planning permission obtained for a bungalow.

4

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

5/316

D64
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

3. Kingston Town Neighbourhood sites

5

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

6/316

D65
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

242A Canbury Park Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at
this time and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA001

Address

242A Canbury Park Road, Kingston, KT2
6LG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only

Proposal submitted to the council

Residential.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 16 and 47 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.12

6

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

7/316

D66
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

7

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

8/316

D67
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Seven Kings Car Park, Skerne Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA002

Address

Seven Kings Car Park, Skerne Road, Kingston, KT2
5AD

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Multi-storey car park (703
spaces) serving Kingston town centre

Proposal submitted to the
council

Mixed use redevelopment incorporating residential and
car parking. Car parking could be re-provided as part of
any redevelopment scheme with any net loss in spaces
being assessed in the context of existing provision
throughout the town centre and access to public
transport.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix, assuming a
Central character and Public Transport Accessibility
Level of 6a.
Calculation of between 69 and 199 homes (if the whole
site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.49

8

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

9/316

D68
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

9

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

10/316

D69
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Canbury Car Park, Walter Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA003

Address

Canbury Car Park, Walter Street, Kingston,
KT2 5BW

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? In use as car park

Proposal

Mixed use - Residential / Mixed-use
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 59 and 170 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.42

10

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

11/316

D70
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

11

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

12/316

D71
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Murray House & MILAAP Centre, Acre Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA004

Address

Murray House & MILAAP Centre, Acre
Road, Kingston, KT2 6EE

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Residential Care Home
and Day Centre

Proposal

Residential / Mixed use
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 23 and 86 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.36

12

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

13/316

D72
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

13

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

14/316

D73
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land At 2-6 Manorgate Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA005

Address

Land At 2-6 Manorgate Road, Kingston,
KT2 7AL

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use?

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
residential and 20% non-residential with
potential 102 houses
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2033/34

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 48 and 138 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.34

14

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

15/316

D74
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

15

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

16/316

D75
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Parc House, Cowleaze House, Police Station and 13-23,
Cowleaze Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA006

Address

Parc House, Cowleaze House, Police
Station and 13-23, Cowleaze Road,
Kingston, KT2 6DZ

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Office

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
residential and 20% non-residential with
potential 141 houses
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 61 and 176 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.44

16

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

17/316

D76
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

17

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

18/316

D77
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Canbury Business Park and Former Gala Bingo Hall,
Richmond Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.

Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA007

Address

Canbury Business Park and Former Gala
Bingo Hall, Richmond Road Kingston, KT2
5ED

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)
Former Bingo Hall Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business Park and
former Bingo Hall

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 70%
residential and 30% non-residential with
potential 284 houses
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 140 and 406 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

1.00

18

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

19/316

D78
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

19

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

20/316

D79
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Ashway Centre, Elm Grove
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA008

Address

Ashway Centre, Elm Grove, Kingston, KT2
6HH

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business units

Proposal

Residential only to provide 217 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 75 and 217 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Canbury

Site area (in hectares)

0.54

20

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

21/316

D80
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

21

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

22/316

D81
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Thames Side Wharf, Water Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA009

Address

Thames Side Wharf, Water Lane, Kingston,
KT1 1AJ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

No use on the site.
The site has been vacant and cleared for a
significant period of time.
Residential Use? No
Non-Residential Use? No

Proposal

Residential led mixed use - Residential,
leisure, offices, retail
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 24 and 70 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.17

22

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

23/316

D82
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

23

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

24/316

D83
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Bentall Centre, Wood Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.

Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA010

Address

Bentall Centre, Wood Street, Kingston, KT1
1TP

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail (56,430 sqm)

Proposal

Non-residential only Extension of existing
Shopping Centre to provide additional retail
and/or other town centre uses.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

1.96

24

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

25/316

D84
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

25

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

26/316

D85
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Bentall Centre Car Parks A and B, Steadfast Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA011

Address

Bentall Centre Car Parks A and B, Steadfast Road,
Kingston, KT1 1TY

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Site is currently occupied by two
multi-storey car parks serving the Bentall Centre and
Kingston town centre.

Proposal

Residential led mixed use - Mixed use redevelopment
incorporating residential and retail in addition to the
re-provision of some car parking. Initial feasibility work
has identified the potential for upwards of 270 residential
units and circa 4,900sqm of GIA retail and/or leisure
floorspace.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix, assuming a
Central character and Public Transport Accessibility
Level of 6a
Calculation of between 108 and 313 homes (if the whole
site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.77

26

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

27/316

D86
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

27

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

28/316

D87
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

1-6 Riverside Walk, 2 Bishop's Hall, 19-31 Thames
Street inc. Bishops Palace House and 2 Clarence Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference SA012
Address

1-6 Riverside Walk, 2 Bishop's Hall, 19-31 Thames Street
inc. Bishops Palace House, and 2 Clarence Street,
Kingston, KT1 1QN

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Yes - various retail / restaurant,
public house, office / commercial, nightclub

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use - Mixed-use, potentially
including retail, leisure, office and residential uses
(excluding nightclub use).
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix, assuming a
Central character and Public Transport Accessibility Level
of 6a
Calculation of between 97 and 281 homes (if the whole
site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.70

28

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

29/316

D88
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

29

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

30/316

D89
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Ashdown Road Car Park
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA013

Address

Ashdown Road Car Park, Ashdown Road,
Kingston, KT1 1EE

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? In use as car park

Proposal

Please note that this site has come forward
from more than one person/group with
similar but different ideas.
Proposal 1 Residential / Mixed-use
Timescale: Immediately
Proposal 2 Residential, retail, commercial,
other town centres uses.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 68 and 198 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land,
Strategic Industrial Location, Listed Building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.49

30

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

31/316

D90
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

31

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

32/316

D91
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Surrey House, 34 Eden Street and St James Car Park
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA014

Address

Surrey House, 34 Eden Street, Kingston,
KT1 1ER

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Residential Use? No, however prior
approval has been granted for the
conversion of the main Surrey House
building from offices to residential.
Non-Residential Use? The Surrey House
site comprises four elements: the
Hippodrome nightclub building, a
multistorey car park, the 'Roundhouse'
(occupied by Bo Concept, a furniture
retailer) and Surrey House itself which
comprises retail units at ground floor (with
ancillary space at first floor level) and
offices on the upper two floors (vacant).

Proposal

It is noted that two proposals were received
for this site but as they were for the same
use and timescale, this has only been
included once.
Mixed use - A Use Classes at ground floor
level with residential units on upper floors
up to 350 units.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 175 and 506 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A
32

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

33/316

D92
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

1.25

33

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

34/316

D93
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

John Bunyan Baptist Church, Cromwell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA015

Address

John Bunyan Baptist Church, Cromwell
Road, Kingston, KT2 6RE

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? The site is occupied
by a former church. Class D1. Floor space
estimate 500sqm over 2 floors

Proposal

Mixed use - Residential or student
accommodation. Mixed use incorporating A
class uses (shops, financial and
professional services, restaurant) and
residential above.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 7 and 21 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.05

34

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

35/316

D94
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

35

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

36/316

D95
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Cromwell Road Bus Station
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA016

Address

Cromwell Road Bus Station, Kingston, KT2
6RD

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Bus station

Proposal

Residential-led redevelopment, subject to
financial viability and the relocation or
co-location or operational uses.
Site may be required for Crossrail 2 related
facilities, and for nearer-term bus related
improvements, so opportunities for the
co-location of transport facilities and
residential development.
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 56 and 161 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.40

36

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

37/316

D96
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

37

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

38/316

D97
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Fairfield Bus Station, Fairfield North
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA017

Address

Fairfield Bus Station, Fairfield North,
Kingston, KT1 2PG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Bus station

Proposal

Site allocated in the Kingston Area Action
Plan. Supportive of continued allocation for
an improved bus station.
Opportunity for broader redevelopment for
residential (potentially incorporating
neighbouring sites). Dependent on the
relocation or co-location of operational
uses.
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 16 and 46 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.11

38

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

39/316

D98
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

39

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

40/316

D99
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Cattle Market Car Park, Fairfield North
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA018

Address

Cattle Market Car Park, Fairfield North,
Kingston, KT1 2QY

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Multi storey Car park
(surface plus 2 underground levels) Bus
Layover, Leisure Centre, Library, Museum

Proposal

Please note that this site has come forward
from more than one person/group with
different ideas.
Proposal 1 Mixed use. The site has been
identified as an opportunity for
redevelopment in the Eden Quarter
Development Brief, either for
commercial/residential development or
institutional use, including potential
reprovision of the carpar, monday market
and leisure and culture uses.
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)
Proposal 2 Mixed use - residential led Including C2 or sui, D1,C1, B1 and leisure
Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 268 and 776 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

1.92
40

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

41/316

D100
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

41

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

42/316

D101
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Guildhall, High Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA019

Address

Guildhall, High Street, Kingston, KT1 1EU

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Civic offices

Proposal

Mixed use - residential led - Including C2 or
sui, D1, C1 and B1
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 176 and 510 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

1.26

42

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

43/316

D102
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

43

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

44/316

D103
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Triangle of land at Littlefield Close
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA020

Address

Triangle of land at Littlefield Close,
Kingston, KT1 2UG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant Plot

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? no
Non-Residential Use? no

Proposal

Residential only - Residential development
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 3 and 9 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.02

44

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

45/316

D104
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

45

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

46/316

D105
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston Children's Library, Fairfield Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA021

Address

Kingston Children's Library, Fairfield Road,
Kingston, KT1 2PS

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Currently unused

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? No
Non-Residential Use? Currently vacant

Proposal

Unknown - Unclear at this stage
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6a
Calculation of between 8 and 23 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.06

46

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

47/316

D106
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

47

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

48/316

D107
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Market House, Market Place
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA022

Address

Market House, Market Place, Kingston, KT1
1JS

Type of site

Brownfield

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Former Municipal
Centre, currently used for A1 retail

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use - details
unknown
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

Grade II* listed building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.02

48

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

49/316

D108
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

49

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

50/316

D109
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land to the west of 41 Lower Marsh Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA023

Address

Land to the west of 41 Lower Marsh Lane,
Kingston, KT1 3BJ

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Metropolitan Open Land, previously owned
and used by Thames Water
Non-Residential Use? Unknown

Proposal

Residential only - The site is
underdeveloped Metropolitan Open Land,
close to the Kingston town centre and
Berrylands Station. This would be capable
of holding up to 30 residential units, and car
parking
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 6 and 20 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.18

50

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

51/316

D110
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

51

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

52/316

D111
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Middle Mill, Kingston University
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA024

Address

Middle Mill, Kingston University, Portland
Road, Kingston, KT1 2SJ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? There are currently
existing halls of residence on site which
provide 204 student bedspaces and
ancillary facilities.
Non-Residential Use? The Stanley Picker
gallery (approx. 400sqm) is also on the
Middle Mill site, though there is no intention
that the part of the site occupied by the
Picker gallery would be redeveloped

Proposal

Mixed use Redevelopment by replacing
some of the existing halls of residences with
new academic buildings and civic spaces
and facilities. Student accommodation
would be re-provided elsewhere via an
agreement with a third party or by providing
new student accommodation at another
Kingston University site. The current
pre-application discussions relate to the
loss of 120 student units and replacement
with approx 6,750sqm of academic
floorspace.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 13 and 41 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A
52

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

53/316

D112
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.37

53

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

54/316

D113
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingsmill Business Park, Chapel Mill Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA025

Address

Kingsmill Business Park, Chapel Mill Road,
Kingston, KT1 3GZ

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business units

Proposal

Residential use only
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 31 and 100 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.91

54

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

55/316

D114
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

55

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

56/316

D115
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

The Malthouse and River Reach, 25-35 High Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA026

Address

The Malthouse and River Reach, 25-35
High Street, Kingston, KT1 1LL

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail (food and
drink) on ground and offices above

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 60%
housing and 40% commercial to provide
about 64 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 37 and 106 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.26

56

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

57/316

D116
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

57

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

58/316

D117
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston University, Penrhyn Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA027

Address

Kingston University, Penrhyn Road,
Kingston, KT1 2EE

Type of site

Previously developed land

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Education

Proposal

Non-residential only
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

3.39

58

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

59/316

D118
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

59

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

60/316

D119
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Princess Mews and Princess Court, Horace Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA028

Address

Princess Mews and Princess Court, Horace
Road, Kingston, KT1 2SL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Princess Mews
comprises approximately 1,600 sqm
(17,000 sq.ft) of office space across nine
units.

Proposal

Non-residential only - Redeveloped to
provide new academic facilities that will
form part of the University’s Knights Park
Campus (approximately 3,000 sqm of
floorspace).
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 18 and 58 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.52

60

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

61/316

D120
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

61

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

62/316

D121
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

John Lewis (North West), Horse Fair
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA029 (see also site SA036)

Address

John Lewis (North West), Horse Fair,
Kingston, KT1 1TE

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Department store

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use based on
80% retail and 20% residential for possibly
62 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 96 and 279 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.69

62

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

63/316

D122
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

63

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

64/316

D123
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

The Rose Car Park and Drapers Court, Kent Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA030

Address

The Rose Car Park and Drapers Court,
Kent Road, Kingston, KT1 2AE

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Car park and offices

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
housing and 20% commercial with
approximately 98 homes
Timescale: 2029/30 - 2033/34

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 42 and 122 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.30

64

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

65/316

D124
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

65

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

66/316

D125
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

107-163 Clarence Street, Rear Yard, Former Empire
Building and Station Buildings, Fife Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA031

Address

107-163 Clarence Street, Rear Yard,
Former Empire Building and Station
Buildings, Fife Road, Kingston, KT1 1QY

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use?

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use based on
30% residential (86 new homes) and the
rest commercial
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 89 and 257 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.63

66

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

67/316

D126
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

67

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

68/316

D127
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston Station, Wood Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA032

Address

Kingston Station, Wood Street, Kingston,
KT1 1UJ

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Train station and
forecourt

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 60% housing
and 40% other uses such as transport hub
and commercial
Timescale: 2040/41+

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 100 and 290 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.71

68

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

69/316

D128
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

69

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

70/316

D129
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Riverside Centre and 34-52 High Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA033

Address

Riverside Centre and 34-52 High Street,
Kingston, KT1 1HG

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail, food and
drink, nightclub, offices

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 60%
commercial and 20% housing (144 homes)
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 83 and 240 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

40 High Street - Grade II listed building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.59

70

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

71/316

D130
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

71

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

72/316

D131
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

The Rotunda, Clarence Street
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA034

Address

The Rotunda, Clarence Street, Kingston,
KT1 1QJ

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail and leisure
uses

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use based on
80% commercial and 20% residential (70
homes)
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 121 and 349 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Bentalls Depository - Grade II listed building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.86

72

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

73/316

D132
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

73

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

74/316

D133
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Clarence Street North
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA035

Address

Clarence Street North, Kingston, KT1 1QY

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 60%
residential to deliver 249 homes and 40%
commercial
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 144 and 415 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

1.03

74

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

75/316

D134
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

75

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

76/316

D135
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

John Lewis (South East), Horse Fair
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA036 (see also site SA029)

Address

John Lewis (South East), Horse Fair, KT1
1TE

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Department store

Proposal

Residential only to provide 252 homes.
Timescale: 2034/35 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 87 and 252 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.62

76

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

77/316

D136
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

77

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

78/316

D137
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Saipem House and Conquest House, Wood Street and
Fife Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA037

Address

Saipem House and Conquest House, Wood
Street and Fife Road, Kingston, KT1 1UW

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? offices

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use with 20%
housing (76 units)
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 131 and 378 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.93

78

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

79/316

D138
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

79

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

80/316

D139
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Bittoms Car Park, The Bittoms
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA038

Address

Bittoms Car Park, The Bittoms, Kingston,
KT1 2BB

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Carpark

Proposal

Residential only to provide 137 homes.
Timescale: 2019/20 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 47 and 137 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

None

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.34

80

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

81/316

D140
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

81

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

82/316

D141
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston College, Kingston Hall Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA039

Address

Kingston College, Kingston Hall Road,
Kingston, KT1 2AQ

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Education

Proposal

Residential only to provide 346 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 119 and 346 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.85

82

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

83/316

D142
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

83

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

84/316

D143
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston University Knight's Park Campus, Grange
Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA040

Address

Kingston University Knight's Park Campus,
Grange Road, Kingston, KT1 2QF

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Education

Proposal

Residential only to provide 324 homes.
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 128 and 369 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

0.91

84

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

85/316

D144
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

85

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

86/316

D145
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Eden Quarter, Lady Booth Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA041

Address

Eden Quarter, Lady Booth Road, Kingston,
KT1 1BU

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail and car
parking

Proposal

Mixed use with half retail/commercial and
half residential with 432 homes.
Timescale: 2019/20 - 2023/24

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 268 and 777 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

1.92

86

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

87/316

D146
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

87

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

88/316

D147
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works Site 3
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA042 (see also sites SA043, SA056 and
SA146)

Address

Land at Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works
Site 3, KT1 3BW

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Sewage works

Proposal

Residential only to provide 824 homes.
Timescale:

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 115 and 363 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

3.3

88

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

89/316

D148
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

89

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

90/316

D149
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA043 (see also sites SA042, SA056 and
SA146)

Address

Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works, Lower
Marsh Lane, KT1 3BW

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Sewage works

Proposal

Residential only to provide 6,913 homes
Timescale:

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 968 and 3,042
homes (if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

27.65

90

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

91/316

D150
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

91

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

92/316

D151
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Surrey County Hall, Milner Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA044

Address

Surrey County Hall, Milner Road, Kingston,
KT1 2DN

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Civic offices

Proposal

Non-residential only
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Grove

Site area (in hectares)

2.35

92

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

93/316

D152
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

93

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

94/316

D153
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Hawks Road Clinic
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA045

Address

Hawks Road Clinic, Hawks Road, Kingston,
KT1 3EW

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Two storey D1
non-residential institution. Community care
unit 750-800sqm.

Proposal

Residential only Mixed use scheme,
providing healthcare facilities (continued
use) and residential units.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1a
Calculation of between 11 and 36 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

0.32

94

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

95/316

D154
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

95

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

96/316

D155
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Cambridge Gardens
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA046

Address

Cambridge Gardens, Cambridge Road,
Norbiton, KT1 3NP

Type of site

Other - Residential Land

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Yes
Non-Residential Use? Possibly a
Community Hall?

Proposal

Mixed use - Residential Intensification
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 299 and 962 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

2.14

96

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

97/316

D156
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

97

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

98/316

D157
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Taverner House and Telephone Exchange, Birkenhead
Avenue
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA047

Address

Taverner House and Telephone Exchange,
Birkenhead Avenue, Kingston, KT2 6RF

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? partially B1/sui
generis, redundant BT building

Proposal

Please note that this site has come forward
from more than one person/group with
similar but different ideas.
Proposal 1 Residential led mixed use with
80% housing to deliver 400 homes and
20% commercial such as retail or offices
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)
Proposal 2 Council housing
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 173 and 556 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

1.23

98

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

99/316

D158
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

99

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

100/316

D159
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Fairfield Industrial Estate, Hogsmill Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA048

Address

Fairfield Industrial Estate, Hogsmill Lane,
Kingston, KT1 3AY

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business units

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 40%
commercial and 60% residential to provide
85 homes
Timescale: 2029/30 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 49 and 155 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land,
Strategic Industrial Location, Listed Building

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

1.41

100

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

101/316

D160
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

101

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

102/316

D161
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Asda, 142 London Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA049

Address

Asda, 142 London Road, Kingston, KT2
6QL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Supermarket

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
housing (311 homes) and 20% commercial
Timescale: 2029/30 - 2033/34

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 5
Calculation of between 153 and 492 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

1.09

102

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

103/316

D162
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

103

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

104/316

D163
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Big Yellow Self Storage, 163 London Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA050

Address

Big Yellow Self Storage, 163 London Road,
Kingston, KT2 6NU

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Commercial storage

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
housing (114 units) and the remaining 20%
commercial
Timescale: 2029/30 - 2033/34

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 56 and 181 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

0.40

104

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

105/316

D164
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

105

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

106/316

D165
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Croner House and Clarendon House, London Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA051

Address

Croner House and Clarendon House,
London Road, Kingston, KT2 6TL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices

Proposal

Residential only to provide 180 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 6
Calculation of between 71 and 228 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

0.51

106

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

107/316

D166
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

107

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

108/316

D167
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land to the rear of 204-210 Cambridge Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA052

Address

Land to the rear of 204-210 Cambridge
Road, Norbiton, KT1 3LU

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant Plot

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? no
Non-Residential Use? no

Proposal

Residential only - Residential Development
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 4 and 8 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

0.11

108

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

109/316

D168
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

109

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

110/316

D169
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingsmeadow Football Stadium, Jack Goodchild Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA053 (see also site SA055)

Address

Kingsmeadow Football Stadium, Jack
Goodchild Way, Kingston, KT1 3PB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Leisure

Proposal

Residential only to provide 500 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 219 and 470 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

6.27

110

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

111/316

D170
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

111

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

112/316

D171
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Arrow Plastics, Hampden Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA054

Address

Arrow Plastics, Hampden Road, Kingston,
KT1 3HQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business units

Proposal

Residential only to provide 31 homes
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 17 and 36 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

0.48

112

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

113/316

D172
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

113

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

114/316

D173
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Part of Kingsmeadow Stadium Grounds, Jack Goodchild
Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA055 (see also site SA053)

Address

Part of Kingsmeadow Stadium Grounds,
Jack Goodchild Way, Kingston, KT1 3PB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Football club, leisure
and car parking associated with leisure use

Proposal

Residential only to provide 57 homes
Timescale: 2034/35 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 31 and 66 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

0.88

114

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

115/316

D174
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

115

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

116/316

D175
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works Site 1
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA056 (see also sites SA042, SA043 and
SA146)

Address

Land at Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works
Site 1, KT1 3BW

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Sewage works

Proposal

Residential only to provide 638 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 279 and 598 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Norbiton

Site area (in hectares)

7.97

116

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

117/316

D176
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

117

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

118/316

D177
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

St. George's Industrial Estate, Richmond Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA057

Address

St. George's Industrial Estate, Richmond
Road, Kingston, KT2 5PR

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail, offices and
business units

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
housing (341 homes) and 20% commercial
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 71 and 152 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tudor

Site area (in hectares)

2.03

118

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

119/316

D178
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

119

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

120/316

D179
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

336 Richmond Road, Kingston
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA058

Address

336 Richmond Road, Kingston, KT2 5PR

Type of site

Other site

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? We believe that this is
derelict empty house - 1 unit on the site
Non-Residential Use? don't think so

Proposal

Residential only - Keeping its original use
which is residential unit , currently
abandoned and derelict to the best of our
knowledge
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 2 and 3 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tudor

Site area (in hectares)

0.04

120

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

121/316

D180
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

121

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

122/316

D181
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

4. Maldens and Coombe Neighbourhood sites

122

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

123/316

D182
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Church Hall, 1A Cambridge Avenue
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA059

Address

Church Hall, 1A Cambridge Avenue, New
Malden, KT3 4JY

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Residential Use? One three bedroom, two
storey dwelling occupied as caretaker's
house in association with the old parish
rooms.
Non-Residential Use? D1 parish rooms.

Proposal

Residential only - with potential for 3/4
storey development comprising approx.
8-10 flats within mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom
units with on site, cycling and refuse
facilities.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 4 and 15 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

0.09

123

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

124/316

D183
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

124

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

125/316

D184
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Cocks Crescent
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA060

Address

Cocks Crescent, New Malden, KT3 4AH

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
some vacant

Existing land use

Mixed use - retail, MS Car Park, site of
demolished buildings and potentially
including leisure centre and adjacent care
home sites
Residential Use? Care Home?
Non-Residential Use? Retail, leisure

Proposal

Please note that this site has come forward
from more than one person/group with
similar but different ideas.
Proposal 1 Mixed use
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)
Proposal 2 Mixed use, residential-led
redevelopment of the site with retail and
community uses and open space
Timescale: 6-10 years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 94 and 541 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

2.08

125

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

126/316

D185
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

126

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

127/316

D186
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Hobkirk House / Noble Centre, Blagdon Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA061

Address

Hobkirk House / Noble Centre, Blagdon
Road, New Malden, KT3 4BD

Type of site

Brownfield Vacant but Occupied by
Property Guardians

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Residential care home
and day centre

Proposal

Residential / Mixed use
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 21 and 78 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

0.46

127

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

128/316

D187
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

128

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

129/316

D188
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

St Georges Square, CI Tower and Car Park, Dukes
Avenue
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA062

Address

St Georges Square, CI Tower and Car Park,
Dukes Avenue, New Malden, KT3 4HG

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices, ground floor
pub, car parking

Proposal

Residential led mixed use including 60% of
the site as residential (95 homes) and the
rest as commercial
Timescale: 2034/35 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 34 and 128 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

0.75

129

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

130/316

D189
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

130

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

131/316

D190
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Apex Tower and Multistorey Car Park, Grafton Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA063

Address

Apex Tower and Multistorey Car Park,
Grafton Road, New Malden, KT3 4DQ

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Ground floor retail
with offices above (betting shop, food and
drink)

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 80%
residential to create 86 flats
Timescale: 2019/20 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 28 and 107 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

0.63

131

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

132/316

D191
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

132

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

133/316

D192
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingspark Business Centre, 152-178 Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA064

Address

Kingspark Business Centre, 152-178
Kingston Road, New Malden, KT3 3PN

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business units

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 80%
residential to create 128 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 56 and 151 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

1.59

133

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

134/316

D193
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

134

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

135/316

D194
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

St John's Industrial Estate, Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA065

Address

St John's Industrial Estate, Kingston Road,
New Malden, KT3 3SW

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Mixed commercial
uses

Proposal

Mixed use based on half retained as
commercial and half as residential (369
homes)
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 323 and 876 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Beverley

Site area (in hectares)

9.22

135

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

136/316

D195
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

136

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

137/316

D196
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Station Approach, Norbiton
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA066

Address

Station Approach, Norbiton, KT2 7AZ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Storage and
warehouse (a total of 3,000 sqm, excluding
mezzanine)

Proposal

Residential led mixed use - The site is
considered to be appropriate for residential
use, approximately 250 homes
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 46 and 170 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.71

137

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

138/316

D197
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

138

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

139/316

D198
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston Hospital Care Centre, Galsworthy Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA067

Address

Kingston Hospital Care Centre, Galsworthy
Road, Kingston, KT2 7QB

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Hospital

Proposal

Residential only - residential development
for both private and key worker
accommodation
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 138 and 444 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.99

139

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

140/316

D199
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

140

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

141/316

D200
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston Riding School, 40 Crescent Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA068

Address

Kingston Riding School, 40 Crescent Road,
Kingston, KT2 7RG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? An Equestrian Riding
Centre

Proposal

Residential only
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 21 and 44 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.59

141

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

142/316

D201
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

142

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

143/316

D202
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Robin Hood Farm, Robin Hood Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA069

Address

Robin Hood Farm, Robin Hood Way,
Kingston Vale, SW15 3QG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? Market Housing x 1
Non-Residential Use? Offices, commercial
storage, yard areas totalling built area of
2800 sq.m.

Proposal

Please note that this site has come forward
from more than one person/group with
similar but different ideas.
Proposal 1 Mixed use - Robin Wood Farm
lies to directly to the southern edge of the
existing residential development of Keswick
Avenue and benefits from two entrances off
Robin Hood Way alongside the A3.
The site is suited for either residential,
commercial or a mix of both. Keswick
Avenue consists of semi detached houses
with front and rear gardens set at a density
of approximately 28 units per hectare. The
landowner would consider a redevelopment
of the site to semi-detached houses at a
density of 30 units per hectare or greater.
The site could also sustain a mix of
residential types including the above
mentioned semi-detached houses (30 + per
hectare) but also maisonettes (50 + per
hectare) and flats (75+ per hectare) in order
to provide a housing mix that will allow for a
range of potential occupiers.
It is proposed that the site would contain
affordable housing and the landowner
would be prepared to consider a scheme
that would provide a percentage of
143

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

144/316

D203
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

affordable homes in excess of the
Borough's AH policy requirements. The site
could sustain a few integrated retail units in
order to compliment the shops already
available near to the site.
Due to the sustainable location of the site it
could also sustain residential care home
accommodation.
The site could also be put to light industrial
and storage uses which would comprise
similar buildings and yard areas to those
already on site at a density to be discussed.
Timescale: p to 5 years (by 2023)
Proposal 2 Mixed use - Mix of residential
including two and three storey
semi-detached units (density 30 units per
hectare minimum) as well as maisonettes
(density 55 units per hectare minimum) and
flats (density 70 units per hectare
minimum). Due to the sustainable location a
development of the site could include either
partial or full use for residential care
accommodation.
The site also lends itself for commercial
uses which would include buildings and
yard areas similar to that which exists on
site.

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 30 and 64 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.86

144

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

145/316

D204
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

145

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

146/316

D205
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Coombe Oak, Warren Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA070

Address

Coombe Oak, Warren Road, Kingston, KT2
7HY

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Care Home

Proposal

Residential only C- Resi / Care Home Proposed expansion to accommodate
decant from Woodbury
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 11 and 31 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.33

146

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

147/316

D206
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

147

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

148/316

D207
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston University, Kingston Hill
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA071

Address

Kingston University, Kingston Hill, Kingston,
KT2 7LB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? There are currently two
existing halls of residence on site which
provide 488 student accommodation units
(approx. 9000sqm). Chancellors Hall
provides 328 rooms and Walkden provides
160 rooms.
Non-Residential Use? Academic facilities
forming part of the Kingston Hill campus
(approx.
31,500 sqm)

Proposal

Mixed use - In the mid to long term car park
A, Coombehurst House, Coombehurst
Studio, Coombehurst Court and
Coombehurst Lodge are not suitable for
academic facilities as they do not provide
the required spaces and facilities for
modern teaching and learning
environments. It is suggested that the land
edged green on the plan at Appendix 2 is
therefore suitable for residential
development once academic activities have
been moved elsewhere.
This development could happen in two
phases – the part currently occupied by Car
Park A might be available sooner than the
rest of the site.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,

148

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

149/316

D208
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 550 and 1,179
homes (if the whole site is residential only)
Strategic constraints

Retaining wall to the south of main house Grade II listed building

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

15.71

149

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

150/316

D209
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kendall Cars, 450 Robin Hood Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA072

Address

Kendall Cars, 450 Robin Hood Way,
Kingston Vale, SW20 0AP

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Car sales yard

Proposal

Residential use only to provide 21 homes
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 9 and 25 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.27

150

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

151/316

D210
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

151

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

152/316

D211
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Coombe Hill House, Beverley Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA073

Address

Coombe Hill House, Beverley Way,
Kingston Vale, SW20 0AR

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices

Proposal

Residential use only to provide 38 homes
Timescale: 2024/258 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 17 and 45 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.47

152

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

153/316

D212
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

153

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

154/316

D213
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at Cumberland House, Kingston Hill
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA074

Address

Land at Cumberland House, Kingston Hill,
Kingston, KT2 7LH

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices

Proposal

Residential use only to provide 38 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 21 and 44 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.59

154

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

155/316

D214
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

155

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

156/316

D215
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

1-33 Gloucester Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA075

Address

1-33 Gloucester Road, Kingston, KT1 3RF

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Yes

Proposal

Residential only
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 58 and 168 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

1.29

156

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

157/316

D216
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

157

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

158/316

D217
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Galsworthy House Care Home, Kingston Hill
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA076

Address

Galsworthy House Care Home, Kingston
Hill, Kingston, KT2 7LX

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Care home

Proposal

Residential only to provide 29 houses
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 12 and 34 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.36

158

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

159/316

D218
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

159

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

160/316

D219
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Warren Park Children’s Centre, Kingston Hill
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA077

Address

Warren Park Children’s Centre, Kingston
Hill, Kingston, KT2 7LX

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Children’s Centre

Proposal

Residential only to provide 36 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 16 and 43 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.45

160

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

161/316

D220
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

161

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

162/316

D221
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

New Victoria Hospital, 182 To 184 Coombe Lane West
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA078

Address

New Victoria Hospital, 182 To 184 Coombe
Lane West, Kingston, KT2 7EG

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Healthcare

Proposal

Non-residential only to healthcare facilities
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.70

162

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

163/316

D222
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

163

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

164/316

D223
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

22 Gloucester Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA079

Address

22 Gloucester Road, Kingston, KT1 3SJ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Unknown. Former residential, large garden
Occupied by Property Guardians
Residential Use? Yes vacant
Non-Residential Use? No

Proposal

Residential only - Residential development
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 6 and 15 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Vale

Site area (in hectares)

0.16

164

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

165/316

D224
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

165

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

166/316

D225
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Travis Perkins, 74-76 Coombe Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA080

Address

Travis Perkins, 74-76 Coombe Road, New
Malden, KT3 4QS

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Existing Travis
Perkins Builders' Merchant (sui generis)

Proposal

Mixed use - as with other Travis Perkins
branches, retain the timber merchant and
add housing e.g St Pancras Way, Battersea
Park Road elsewhere in London
Timescale: 11-15 years (2029-2033)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 7 and 25 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Vale

Site area (in hectares)

0.15

166

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

167/316

D226
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

167

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

168/316

D227
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

40-50 Coombe Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA081

Address

40-50 Coombe Road, New Malden, KT3
3JH

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices

Proposal

Residential only to provide 53 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2033/34

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 14 and 53 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Coombe Vale

Site area (in hectares)

0.31

168

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

169/316

D228
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

169

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

170/316

D229
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Gasholders, West Barnes Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA082

Address

Gasholder, West Barnes Lane, Motspur
Park, KT3 6NQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Gasholders

Proposal

Residential
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 78 and 166 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Old Malden

Site area (in hectares)

2.22

170

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

171/316

D230
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

171

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

172/316

D231
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Venner Youth Centre, The Manor Drive
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA083

Address

Venner Youth Centre, The Manor Drive,
Worcester Park, KT4 7LG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Youth Centre

Proposal

Residential / Mixed use

Timescale: Immediately
Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 5 and 13 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Old Malden

Site area (in hectares)

0.14

172

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

173/316

D232
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

173

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

174/316

D233
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Sheephouse Way Housing Estate, Sheephouse Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA084

Address

Sheephouse Way Housing Estate,
Sheephouse Way, New Malden, KT3 5PL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Council estate

Proposal

Residential only to redevelop estate to
provide about 200 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 88 and 238 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Old Malden

Site area (in hectares)

2.50

174

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

175/316

D234
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

175

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

176/316

D235
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

South Lane Housing Estate, South Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA085

Address

South Lane Housing Estate, South Lane,
New Malden, KT3 5QT

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Council estate

Proposal

Residential only redevelopment of estate to
provide about 519 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2033/34

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 161 and 609 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Old Malden

Site area (in hectares)

3.58

176

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

177/316

D236
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

177

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

178/316

D237
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land Adjacent Worcester Park Station, Malden Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA086

Address

Land Adjacent Worcester Park Station,
Malden Road, Worcester Park, KT4 7NB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Station car parking

Proposal

Residential only to provide 45 homes
Timescale: 2034/35 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 14 and 53 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Old Malden

Site area (in hectares)

0.31

178

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

179/316

D238
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

179

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

180/316

D239
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Former Plough Public House, Church Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA087

Address

Former Plough Public House, Church Road,
Worcester Park KT4 7RD

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Restaurant/pub

Proposal

Residential only - 54 homes
Timescale: 2019/20 - 2023/24

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 17 and 63 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Old Malden

Site area (in hectares)

0.37

180

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

181/316

D240
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

181

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

182/316

D241
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

2-4 Kingston Road and 2 Presburg Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA088

Address

2-4 Kingston Road and 2 Presburg Road,
New Malden, KT3 3LR

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously Developed Land)

Existing land use

Office / residential
Residential Use? 4 Kingston Road and 2
Presburg Road
Non-Residential Use? Offices (2 Kingston
Road)

Proposal

Do not know
Timescale: Beyond 15 years (after 2033)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 12 and 70 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

St James

Site area (in hectares)

0.27

182

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

183/316

D242
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

183

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

184/316

D243
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Burlington Retail Park, Burlington Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA089

Address

Burlington Retail Park, Burlington Road,
New Malden, KT3 4PA

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Retail warehouses

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 40%
retained as commercial and 60% developed
for 108 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming an Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 56 and 211 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

St James

Site area (in hectares)

1.24

184

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

185/316

D244
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

185

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

186/316

D245
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

5. South of the Borough Neighbourhood sites

186

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

187/316

D246
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at Clayton Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA090

Address

Land at Clayton Road, Chessington, KT9
1NN

Type of site

Part previously developed land, part
undeveloped land.

Existing land use

Residential Use? There are a small number
of existing residential units including trailers
on site.
Non-Residential Use? The section of
previously developed land to the west has a
mix of small businesses, an equestrian
centre and associated buildings and a
nursery and associated buildings. Land to
the north of the area of previously
developed land has permission for landfill.

Proposal

Residential led mixed use Residential-led
development for at least 1,500 dwellings.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 802 and 1,718
homes (if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington North and Hook

Site area (in hectares)

22.90

187

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

188/316

D247
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

188

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

189/316

D248
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land adjacent to Rushett Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA091

Address

Land adjacent to Rushett Lane, Malden
Rushett, KT9 2NQ

Type of site

Greenfield Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Unknown

Proposal

Mixed use
Residential, Live/Work, Crèche, Studios
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1a
Calculation of between 54 and 115 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

1.54

189

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

190/316

D249
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

190

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

191/316

D250
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Mellow Stocks, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA092

Address

Mellow Stocks, Leatherhead Road,
Chessington, KT9 2NF

Type of site

Greenfield Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Residential Use? No
Non-Residential Use? No – currently used
as grazing land.

Proposal

Mixed use Various uses - business and/or
residential considered most suitable.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 85 and 231 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

2.43

191

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

192/316

D251
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

192

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

193/316

D252
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Chessington World of Adventures Resort
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA093

Address

Chessington World of Adventures Resort,
Leatherhead Road, Chessington, KT9 2NE

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Operational theme
park resort including over 40 rides and
attractions, 1000 animals, two 4-star hotels
and associated facilities.

Proposal

Non-residential only.
Continued theme park use, including
overnight accommodation.
New attractions including potential
roller-coaster, soft-play, indoor trampoline,
3D cinema, animal attractions.
Over-night accommodation 45 safari
lodges
Parking and access new surfacing
Staff facilities new and redeveloped back
of house facilities
Landscaping and woodland enhanced
appropriate use of Sixty Acre Wood
Timescale: Immediately to long-term

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

Green Belt.
Milestone to the west side of the road
beside the car park at Chessington World of
Adventures - Grade II listed

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

34.68

193

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

194/316

D253
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

194

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

195/316

D254
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

1 Virginia Cottage, Land and Buildings
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA094

Address

1 Virginia Cottage, Land and Buildings,
Chessington, KT9 2LZ

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? Residential, stables,
barns and grazing
Non-Residential Use? Stables, barns and
grazing

Proposal

Residential only - Residential and
associated amenity
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 51 and 109 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

1.46

195

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

196/316

D255
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

196

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

197/316

D256
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Chessington Golf Course, Garrison Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA095

Address

Chessington Golf Course, Garrison Lane,
Chessington, KT9 2LW

Type of site

Partially previously developed land. Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Last use was as a 9
hole golf course with driving range.

Proposal

Residential only
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 371 and 796 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

10.61

197

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

198/316

D257
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

198

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

199/316

D258
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Barwell Court, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA096

Address

Barwell Court, Leatherhead Road,
Chessington, KT9 2LZ

Type of site

Greenfield Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Agricultural use only

Proposal

Residential only - The site is sustainability
located, adjacent to the edge of
Chessington, in close proximity to a number
of services including Barwell Business Park,
educational facilities, Chessington South
train station and a sports centre. Therefore
the sites is considered to be sustainable for
residential development. We consider the
site to have capacity for approximately 300
units.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1a
Calculation of between 501 and 1,074
homes (if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

14.32

199

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

200/316

D259
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

200

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

201/316

D260
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at 449 Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA097

Address

Land at 449 Leatherhead Road,
Chessington, KT9 2NQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Residential only Previously used as
agricultural storage with barns and
outbuildings.
Residential Use? Now used as ancillary to
residential use of 449 Leatherhead Road
KT9 2NQ

Proposal

Residential only
The site is suitable for residential
development and could provide a 120 M2
single story three bedroom unit. A similar
development was recently complete at 449a
Leatherhead Road. Planning applications
14/10106/FUL and 16/10332/FUL refer.
Development on this site would respect the
existing building line in the village. We
believe that given the residential
development on either side and to the rear
of the plot the development would not have
a material impact on the openness of the
greenbelt and could be considered to be
limited infill of a previously developed site
and therefore not contrary to green belt
policy.
The site is suitable for residential
development and could provide a 120 M2
single story three bedroom unit. A similar
development was recently complete at 449a
Leatherhead Road. Planning applications
14/10106/FUL and 16/10332/FUL refer.
Development on this site would respect the
existing building line in the village. We
believe that given the residential
development on either side and to the rear
201

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

202/316

D261
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

of the plot the development would not have
a material impact on the openness of the
greenbelt and could be considered to be
limited infill of a previously developed site
and therefore not contrary to green belt
policy.; AU84
Timescale: Immediately
Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1a
Calculation of between 3 and 6 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.08

202

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

203/316

D262
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Rushett Stables, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA098

Address

Rushett Stables, Leatherhead Road,
Chessington, KT9 2NG

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Yes

Proposal

Residential only - I understand that there is
a call for pitches in the area for the
travelling community to build new pitches so
I think this may be helpful
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1a
Calculation of between 58 and 125 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

1.67

203

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

204/316

D263
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

204

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

205/316

D264
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Coal Depot, Garrison Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA099

Address

Coal Depot, Garrison Lane, Chessington,
KT9 2JR

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Coal depot

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 80%
residential to provide 87 homes
Timescale: 2034/35 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 47 and 129 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

None - specifically excluded from the Green
Belt which surrounds the site

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

1.35

205

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

206/316

D265
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

206

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

207/316

D266
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Fairoak Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA100

Address

Fairoak Lane, Chessington, KT9 2NG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Electricity substation

Proposal

Residential only for 214 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 115 and 247 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

3.30

207

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

208/316

D267
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

208

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

209/316

D268
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Green Lane Nurseries and The Piggeries
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA101

Address

Green Lane Nurseries and The Piggeries,
Chessington, KT9 2TD

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? Residential including one
settled dwelling and a Traveller pitch
Non-Residential Use? Former nurseries
and agricultural uses - not been in
agricultural use for some time

Proposal

Residential only to provide 113 homes.
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 61 and 130 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

1.73

209

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

210/316

D269
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

210

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

211/316

D270
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Green Lane Farm Kennels, Green Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA102

Address

Green Lane Farm Kennels, Green Lane,
Chessington, KT9 2DS

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Residential Use? Used in conjunction with
neighbouring residential use
Non-Residential Use? Kennels

Proposal

Residential only to provide 28 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 15 and 33 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.43

211

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

212/316

D271
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

212

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

213/316

D272
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Glanmire Farm, Rushett Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA103

Address

Glanmire Farm, Rushett Lane,
Chessington, KT18 7TR

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Farm
Residential Use? Yes
Non-Residential Use? Agricultural uses

Proposal

Residential only to deliver 45 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 24 and 52 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.69

213

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

214/316

D273
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

214

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

215/316

D274
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingscourt Coachworks, Green Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA104

Address

Kingscourt Coachworks, Green Lane,
Chessington, KT9 2DT

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Vehicle repairs and
mechanics

Proposal

Residential only to provide 18 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 10 and 21 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.28

215

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

216/316

D275
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

216

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

217/316

D276
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Chessington Garden Centre, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA105

Address

Chessington Garden Centre, Leatherhead
Road, Chessington, KT9 2NG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Garden Centre

Proposal

Residential only to provide 202 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 88 and 189 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

2.52

217

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

218/316

D277
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

218

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

219/316

D278
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Byhurst Farm, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA106

Address

Byhurst Farm, Leatherhead Road,
Chessington, KT9 2NL

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Farm
Residential Use? Farmhouse
Non-Residential Use? Farm with some
ancillary retail (farm store)

Proposal

Residential only to provide 45 homes.
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between between 24 and 52
homes (if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.69

219

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

220/316

D279
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

220

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

221/316

D280
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

The Shy Horse Public House, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA107

Address

The Shy Horse Public House, Leatherhead
Road, Chessington, KT9 2NQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Pub

Proposal

Residential only to provide 23 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 12 and 26 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.35

221

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

222/316

D281
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

222

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

223/316

D282
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

385-399 Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA108

Address

385-399 Leatherhead Road, Chessington,
KT9 2NQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? 3 houses
Non-Residential Use? Timber merchant

Proposal

Residential only to provide 30 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 18 and 39 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.52

223

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

224/316

D283
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

224

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

225/316

D284
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Silverglade Business Park, Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA109

Address

Silverglade Business Park, Leatherhead
Road, Chessington, KT9 2QL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Business units

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use with 80%
commercial and 20% residential to provide
24 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 64 to 136 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

1.82

225

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

226/316

D285
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

226

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

227/316

D286
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

The Moor Lane Centre, Moor Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA110

Address

The Moor Lane Centre, Moor Lane,
Chessington, KT9 2AA

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Child health care
centre

Proposal

Residential only to provide 213 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 93 to 253 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

2.66

227

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

228/316

D287
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

228

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

229/316

D288
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Southborough High School Playing Fields, Love Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA111

Address

Southborough High School Playing Fields,
Love Lane, Surbiton, KT6 5BY

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Used as school playing fields.
Residential Use? There is a three bedroom
detached house on site.
Non-Residential Use? School Washroom
and Changing facility (15 m2)

Proposal

Residential only - Housing
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 35 and 95 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

1.00

229

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

230/316

D289
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

230

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

231/316

D290
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at 1-5 King Edward Drive
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA112

Address

Land at 1-5 King Edward Drive,
Chessington, KT9 1DW

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? 5 existing market
dwellings.
Non-Residential Use? No

Proposal

Residential only - Residential in the form of
specialist accommodation for older people
operating as Extra Care housing (class C2)
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 14 and 39 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

0.41

231

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

232/316

D291
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

232

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

233/316

D292
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingston Business Park, Fullers Way South
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA113

Address

Kingston Business Park, Fullers Way
South, Chessington, KT9 1DQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? c.1,925 sqm
warehouse with ancillary office space.

Proposal

Residential only - High quality high density
residential development of up to c.50 units
depending on unit mix.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 13 and 27 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

0.36

233

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

234/316

D293
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

234

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

235/316

D294
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Shell Garage and Topps Tiles, Hook Rise North
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA114

Address

Shell Garage and Topps Tiles, Hook Rise
North, Surbiton, KT6 5AT

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Service station and
retail

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 80%
residential to provide 13 homes and 20%
commercial
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 13 and 34 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

0.36

235

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

236/316

D295
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

236

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

237/316

D296
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

419 Leatherhead Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA115

Address

419 Leatherhead Road, Chessington KT9
2NQ

Type of site

Greenfield Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Unknown

Proposal

Residential only - A small development of 8
x 3 bed houses.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1a
Calculation of between 16 and 34 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Green Belt

Ward

Chessington South

Site area (in hectares)

0.45

237

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

238/316

D297
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

238

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

239/316

D298
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

6. Surbiton Neighbourhood sites

239

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

240/316

D299
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Tolworth Station, Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA116

Address

Tolworth Station, Kingston Road, Surbiton,
KT5 9NX

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Station and car park

Proposal

Residential led mixed use to provide 80%
residential to provide 82 homes and 20% to
provide commercial/transport infrastructure
Timescale: 2034/35 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 27 and 103 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

0.61

240

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

241/316

D300
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

241

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

242/316

D301
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

King George's Field, Jubilee Way
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA117

Address

King George's Field, Jubilee Way, Surbiton,
KT9 1TR

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Leisure

Proposal

Residential only to provide 1,407 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 492 and 1,336
homes (if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

14.07

242

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

243/316

D302
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

243

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

244/316

D303
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Queen Mary Close, Surbiton
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA118

Address

Queen Mary Close, Surbiton, KT6 7ND

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant Plot

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? no
Non-Residential Use? no

Proposal

Residential only - Residential Development
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 29 to 78 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

0.82

244

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

245/316

D304
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

245

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

246/316

D305
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Red Lion Business Park, Red Lion Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA119

Address

Red Lion Business Park, Red Lion Road,
Chessington, KT6 7QD

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Range of business
units including car sales, nursery and
offices

Proposal

Non-residential led mixed use to provide
20% housing (13 homes) and 80%
commercial
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 127 and 344 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Tolworth and Hook Rise

Site area (in hectares)

3.62

246

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

247/316

D306
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

247

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

248/316

D307
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Worcester Park Nursery, Old Malden Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA120

Address

Worcester Park Nursery, Old Malden Lane,
Worcester Park, KT4 7QB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Residential Use? Permitted development
for residential use in north-west corner of
the site (ref 15/16658/PNO).
Non-Residential Use? Certificates of
lawfulness for garden centre (ref
96/8048/LDE) and various other structures /
uses (ref 12/16515/LDE & 14/16053/LDE).

Proposal

Non-residential use - Commercial,
employment uses
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

1.81

248

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

249/316

D308
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

249

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

250/316

D309
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

The River Club, Old Malden Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA121

Address

The River Club, Old Malden Lane,
Worcester Park, KT4 7PX

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Private sports club
with indoor and outdoor facilities

Proposal

Mixed use - upgrade existing sports club
with new facilities including a pool.
Some residential development (40-50 units)
or C2 assisted living, both providing
affordable housing.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 0
Calculation of between 82 and 176 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

2.35

250

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

251/316

D310
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

251

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

252/316

D311
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Stables, Old Malden Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA122

Address

Stables, Old Malden Lane, Worcester Park,
KT4 7PU

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Stables

Proposal

Residential only to provide 19 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 10 and 22 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.29

252

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

253/316

D312
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

253

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

254/316

D313
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Barrow Hill Nursery, Old Malden Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA123

Address

Barrow Hill Nursery, Old Malden Lane,
Worcester Park, KT4 7PU

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Farm buildings

Proposal

Residential only to provide 24 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 13 and 28 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.37

254

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

255/316

D314
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

255

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

256/316

D315
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Central Nursery, Old Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA124

Address

Central Nursery, Old Kingston Road,
Worcester Park, KT4 7QH

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Garden Centre,
Retail, Cafe, landscape yard and
associated storage.

Proposal

Residential/Retail/Offices. Mixed uses/
Leisure/ Retail and housing.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 100 and 380 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

2.24

256

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

257/316

D316
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

257

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

258/316

D317
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

1-11 Elm Close
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA125

Address

1-11 Elm Close, Surbiton, KT5 9NA

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? 6 detached bungalows

Proposal

Residential only - A specialist residential scheme for
older people falling within the term Extra Care Housing
and defined as a Class C2 use
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix, assuming a
Urban character and Public Transport Accessibility Level
of 1a
Calculation of between 13 and 36 homes (if the whole
site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.38

258

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

259/316

D318
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

259

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

260/316

D319
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

118 Raeburn Avenue
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA126

Address

118 Raeburn Avenue, Surbiton, KT5 9EA

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Car wash, bodyshop
works, auto repair and servicing workshop.

Proposal

Residential led mixed use - Demolition of
the existing buildings and the construction
of a mixed-use development comprising a
food convenience retail store (392 sqm) at
ground floor level (Use Class A1) and for
residential units above (Use Class C3) with
associated parking, landscaping and
access. Please note that residential units
will form part of the emerging mixed-use
proposal at the site, which will also retain
employment generating uses.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of between 4 and 10 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.10

260

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

261/316

D320
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

261

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

262/316

D321
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Travis Perkins, 165 King Charles Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA127

Address

Travis Perkins, 165 King Charles Road,
Tolworth, KT5 9BG

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Travis Perkins
Builders Merchant (sui generis)

Proposal

Mixed use as with other Travis Perkins
branches, retain the timber merchant and
add housing e.g St Pancras Way, Battersea
Park Road elsewhere in London
Timescale: Beyond 15 years (after 2033)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 18 and 67 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.39

262

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

263/316

D322
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

263

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

264/316

D323
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land adjacent to 6 Old Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA128

Address

Land adjacent to 6 Old Kingston Road,
Tolworth, KT4 RQH

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? no
Non-Residential Use? no

Proposal

Residential only - Residential development
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 1 and 5 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.03

264

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

265/316

D324
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

265

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

266/316

D325
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Former Fairmead Nursery, 439 Ewell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA129

Address

Former Fairmead Nursery, 439, Ewell
Road, KT6 7ES

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant Plot w/ condemned building

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? no
Non-Residential Use? no

Proposal

Residential / mixed use
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 6 and 21 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

0.12

266

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

267/316

D326
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

267

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

268/316

D327
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Tolworth Court, Old Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA130

Address

Tolworth Court, Old Kingston Road,
Tolworth, KT4 7QH

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? There is one detached
house on site which is used as student
accommodation.
Non-Residential Use? The site currently
provides a sports pavilion building (approx.
1,300sqm) and outdoor sports facilities
(Leisure use). These include:
- 12 football pitches;
- 2 rugby pitches;
- 3 cricket squares (summer only);
- 1 artificial cricket wicket (summer only);
- 1 American football pitch;
- 1 lacrosse pitch;
- mini-soccer pitches;
- floodlit training areas;
- 2 netball courts;
- 3 tennis courts; and,
- 6/7 a-side hardcourt football pitch

Proposal

Non-residential only - Tolworth Court should
be identified as being a suitable site for an
indoor sports centre, potentially to include a
swimming pool, to address the need in the
local area for indoor sports facilities. This
would ideally be a joint venture project with
the Council and Kingston University.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023), 6-10
years (2024-2028)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses

268

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

269/316

D328
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Housing calculation:

N/A

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

22.52

269

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

270/316

D329
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Goals Tolworth, Kingston Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA131

Address

Goals Tolworth, Kingston Road, Surbiton,
KT5 9NT

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Leisure - 5 aside
pitches and associated building

Proposal

Residential only to provide 211 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 45 and 171 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

1.01

270

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

271/316

D330
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

271

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

272/316

D331
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Tolworth Tower, Tolworth Broadway
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA132

Address

Tolworth Tower, Tolworth Broadway,
Surbiton, KT6 7ET

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Mixed use
Residential Use? Flats and serviced
apartments
Non-Residential Use? Retail and offices

Proposal

Residential led mixed use to provide 154
homes
Timescale: 2019/20 - 2023/24

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 60 and 125 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Alexandra

Site area (in hectares)

1.32

272

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

273/316

D332
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

273

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

274/316

D333
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Sessions House, Ewell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA133

Address

Sessions House, Ewell Road, Surbiton, KT6
6AQ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Unknown

Proposal

Unknown
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 27 and 79 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.20

274

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

275/316

D334
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

275

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

276/316

D335
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Telephone Exchange, Ewell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA134

Address

Telephone Exchange, Ewell Road, Surbiton,
KT5 8RB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Telephone exchange

Proposal

Residential only to provide 166 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 66 and 190 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.47

276

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

277/316

D336
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

277

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

278/316

D337
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

187 Ewell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA135

Address

187 Ewell Road, Surbiton, KT6 6AZ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? B1 offices (vacant)

Proposal

Residential only - Residential development
for up to 55 units.
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 18 and 67 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.40

278

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

279/316

D338
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

279

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

280/316

D339
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land adjacent to 3 Warwick Grove
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA136

Address

Land adjacent to 3 Warwick Grove,
Surbiton, KT5 8SR

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant Plot

Existing land use

Unknown
Residential Use? No
Non-Residential Use? No

Proposal

Residential only
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1b
Calculation of 1 home

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.01

280

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

281/316

D340
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

281

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

282/316

D341
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

King Charles Centre, Hollyfield Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA137

Address

King Charles Centre, Hollyfield Road,
Surbiton, KT5 9AL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? D1 Education Centre

Proposal

Potential mixed use of education plus resi /
other
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 18 and 70 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.41

282

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

283/316

D342
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

283

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

284/316

D343
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

School Cottage, Hollyfield Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA138

Address

School Cottage, Hollyfield Road, Surbiton,
KT5 9AL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Overflow for admin of
adjacent King Charles Centre

Proposal

Residential
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 1 and 6 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.03

284

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

285/316

D344
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

285

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

286/316

D345
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Hollyfield House, 22 Hollyfield Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA139

Address

Hollyfield House, 22 Hollyfield Road,
Surbiton, KT5 9AL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Community healthcare

Proposal

Residential only to provide 39 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 12 to 46 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.27

286

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

287/316

D346
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

287

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

288/316

D347
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Millbank House, Ewell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA140

Address

Millbank House, Ewell Road, Surbiton, KT5
8SP

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices

Proposal

Residential led mixed use based on 80%
housing to provide 52 homes and 20%
commercial
Timescale: 2019/20 - 2023/24

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 3
Calculation of between 20 and 76 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.45

288

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

289/316

D348
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

289

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

290/316

D349
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Kingfisher Court, Ewell Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA141

Address

Kingfisher Court, Ewell Road, Surbiton, KT6
6BB

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Sheltered and care home
housing

Proposal

Residential only to provide 40 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 12 and 46 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.27

290

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

291/316

D350
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

291

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

292/316

D351
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Glenmore House Car Park, The Crescent
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA142

Address

Glenmore House Car Park, The Crescent,
Surbiton, KT6 4BN

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Carpark

Proposal

Residential use only to provide 107 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 28/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 42 and 122 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

St Marks

Site area (in hectares)

0.30

292

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

293/316

D352
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

293

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

294/316

D353
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

1 The Crescent
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA143

Address

1 The Crescent, Surbiton, KT6 4QZ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Offices

Proposal

Residential led mixed use
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2040/41

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 5
Calculation of between 10 and 30 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

St Marks

Site area (in hectares)

0.27

294

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

295/316

D354
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

295

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

296/316

D355
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

52-56 Lower Marsh Lane
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA144

Address

52-56 Lower Marsh Lane, Kingston, KT1
3BJ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Industrial
businesses/ retail warehouses

Proposal

Residential led mixed use with 80%
residential to provide 52 homes and 20%
commercial
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 23 and 71 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

St Marks

Site area (in hectares)

0.65

296

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

297/316

D356
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

297

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

298/316

D357
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at Clayhill Halls of Residence, Burney Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA145

Address

Land at Clayhill Halls of Residence, Burney
Road, KT5 8DF

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Student accommodation

Proposal

Residential only to provide 58 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 31 and 67 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

St Marks

Site area (in hectares)

0.89

298

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

299/316

D358
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

299

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

300/316

D359
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Land at Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works Site 2
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA146 (see also sites SA042, SA043 and
SA056)

Address

Land at Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works
Site 2, KT1 3BW

Type of site

Greenfield

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Non-Residential Use? Sewage works

Proposal

Residential only to provide 331 homes
Timescale: Unknown

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 1
Calculation of between 144 and 310 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

St Marks

Site area (in hectares)

4.13

300

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

301/316

D360
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

301

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

302/316

D361
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Seething Wells Filter Beds, Portsmouth Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA147

Address

Seething Wells Filter Beds, Portsmouth
Road, Surbiton, KT6 4ER

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)
Vacant

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Residential Use? No
Non-Residential Use? Former water
treatment works

Proposal

Please note that this site has come forward
from more than one person/group with
different ideas.
Proposal 1 Non-residential only. Increased
access and use of the riverside. I am sure
some residential housing could or should be
accommodated but even if it was just made
more useable as part of the riverside
amenities it would be a step forward? There
was the idea of a museum demonstrating
the importance of the site in the cleaning of
water etc. Not sure who owns it now but it is
such a waste and a pity that nothing at all is
being done with it?
Timescale: Immediately
Proposal 2 Residential only. Up to 300
residential units (including affordable
housing), public open space (including
access to river bank) and underground
parking infrastructure.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
302

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

303/316

D362
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Calculation of between 287 and 1,085
homes (if the whole site is residential only)
Strategic constraints

Metropolitan Open Land

Ward

St Marks

Site area (in hectares)

6.38

303

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

304/316

D363
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Wellington Court, Glenbuck Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.

Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA148

Address

Wellington Court, Glenbuck Road, Surbiton,
KT6 6BL

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use?

Proposal

Residential only to provide 99 homes
Timescale: 2024/25 - 2028/29

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Central character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 39 and 113 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Surbiton Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.28

304

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

305/316

D364
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

305

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

306/316

D365
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Fircroft, 96 Ditton Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA149

Address

Fircroft, 96 Ditton Road, Surbiton, KT6 6RH

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Residential Care Home

Proposal

Residential
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Suburban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 12 and 33 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Surbiton Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.35

306

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

307/316

D366
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

307

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

308/316

D367
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

61 Ditton Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA150

Address

61 Ditton Road, Surbiton, KT6 6RF

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only Land at the rear of garden. It is
currently a tennis court plus a large lawned area, which
is part of my family home, but is isolated from the view
of the my house and of the neighbouring houses.
Residential Use? Yes
Non-Residential Use? No

Proposal

Residential only
It could be developed as a pair of three bed
semi-detached houses with small gardens, or as a
larger house with a larger garden.
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix, assuming a Urban
character and Public Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 2 and 8 homes (if the whole site is
residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Surbiton Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.05

308

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

309/316

D368
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

309

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

310/316

D369
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Surbiton Station Car Park
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA151

Address

Surbiton Station Car Park, Glenbuck Road,
Surbiton, KT6 6BZ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Non-residential only
Residential Use? No
Non-Residential Use? station car park

Proposal

Residential only - Residential, Station Car
Parking, Retirement Living and supporting
uses
Timescale: Up to 5 years (by 2023)

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 5
Calculation of between 128 and 742 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

Grade II listed building

Ward

Surbiton Hill

Site area (in hectares)

2.86

310

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

311/316

D370
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

311

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

312/316

D371
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Woodbury, Kingsdowne Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA152

Address

Woodbury, Kingsdowne Road, Surbiton,
KT6 6JZ

Type of site

Brownfield (previously developed land)

Existing land use

Residential only
Residential Use? Care Home

Proposal

Residential / Mixed use
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2
Calculation of between 11 and 41 homes (if
the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Surbiton Hill

Site area (in hectares)

0.24

312

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

313/316

D372
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

313

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

314/316

D373
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

Newent House, Browns Road
IMPORTANT NOTE: The council does not have a view on any specific proposal at this time
and wants to hear your thoughts.
Proposal submitted
Site Assessments reference

SA153

Address

Newent House, Browns Road, Surbiton,
KT5 8SP

Type of site

Brownfield (Previously Developed Land)
Vacant but Occupied by Property Guardians

Existing land use

Residential Use? Residential Care Home
and Day Centre

Proposal

Residential / Mixed use / Care Home
Timescale: Immediately

Other information provided by the council to help consultation responses
Housing calculation:

Based on the London Plan density matrix,
assuming a Urban character and Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 4
Calculation of between 26 and 150 homes
(if the whole site is residential only)

Strategic constraints

N/A

Ward

Berrylands

Site area (in hectares)

0.58

314

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

315/316

D374
30/04/2019

Site Assessments (May 2019) - Google Docs

315

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bKS_tJbhy_MPvdOAU8gBZgJwFWhwRK1355-UbVpHH0c/edit#

316/316

